MOBILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE

1. Define unmet needs and explore solutions
2. Research trends to anticipated future needs
3. Review successes elsewhere for applicability locally

Meeting Date: July 27, 2022
Meeting Time: 1:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Location: In-Person and Zoom Conference

Due to the expiration of certain directives contained in the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency
for the State of California (Executive Order N-29-20), Monterey-Salinas Transit Mobility Advisory
Committee will hold meetings in-person and via Zoom virtual meeting as indicated below:

In-Person Participation:

The Regular Meeting of the Monterey-Salinas Transit Mobility Advisory Committee in-person
meeting will be held on July 27, 2022 at 1:00 PM at 19 Upper Ragsdale Drive, Suite 100.
Members of the public are required to wear a face covering and will be socially distanced in the
Board room.

OR
Zoom Participation:

The Regular Meeting of the Monterey-Salinas Transit Mobility Advisory Committee Zoom virtual
meeting will be held on July 27, 2022 at 1:00 PM via Zoom conference, click
hitps://us06web.zoom.us/j/84500836234?pwd=aFQ0YUdid3Y0eW94WmtRZ1Myc0VIdz09 and
enter the following:

Meeting ID: 845 0083 6234 and Passcode: 652252.
By telephone: (669) 900-6833 same Meeting ID: 845 0083 6234 and Passcode: 652252.

Public comments may be made either in person, via Zoom, or via email. Members of the public
may attend the Committee Meeting in person and request to speak to the Committee Members
when the Chair calls for public comment. Persons who wish to make public comment on an
agenda item are encouraged to submit comments in writing by email to MST at mobility@mst.org
by 3:00 PM on Monday, July 25, 2022; those comments will be distributed to the MST Board of
Directors before the meeting. Written comments may be emailed to mobility@mst.org, and
should include the subject line: “Public Comment Item # (insert the agenda item number relevant
to your comment).”




MST District Board and Committee Agendas

Accessibility, Language Assistance, and Public Comments

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Committee after distribution of the
agenda packet are available for public inspection at the Monterey-Salinas Transit District
Administration Building at 19 Upper Ragsdale Dr., Suite 200, Monterey, CA 93940 during
normal business hours.

Upon request, Monterey-Salinas Transit District will provide written materials in appropriate
alternative formats, including disability-related modifications or accommodations, auxiliary aids,
or services to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public meetings. Please send
a written request, including your name, mailing address, phone number, description of the
requested materials, and preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service at least three
working days prior to the meeting at the address below.

Public comments may be submitted for any item on the agenda by contacting MST:
Mail: MST, Attn: MST Staff Support, 15 Lincoln Ave., Salinas, CA 93901
e Email: mobility@mst.org ¢ Phone: (888) 678-2871

m TTY/TDD: 831-393-8111 e 711 Relay
EEy  888-678-2871 / Free language assistance / Asistencia de Lenguaje Gratuito /
Libreng tulong para sa wika / H8 tro ngdn ngir mién phi/ 22 ¢ X &




2.

. CALL TO ORDER

1-1. Roll Call
1-2. Introduction of Members and Guests
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Members of the public may address the Committee on any matter not on the agenda. There
will be a time limit of not more than three minutes for each speaker. The Committee will not
discuss or take action, but may ask questions, on matters brought up under this item during
the meeting but may choose to follow-up at a later time, either through staff or on a
subsequent agenda. (Please refer to page 1 of the agenda for instructions)

3.

CONSENT AGENDA

3-1. Approve Minutes of the regular meeting of March 30, 2022 (Chair)

NEW BUSINESS

4-1. Receive list of Monterey’s County’s 2022 Unmet Transit Needs (Aaron Hernandez)
4-2. Receive an update on the Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program and
provide input on the draft needs assessment and program guidelines (Aaron Hernandez)
PRESENTATION

5-1. Receive presentation by Monterey Police Department Community Action Team
(Sergeant Jenkins)

5-2. Receive presentation on The Blind & Visually Impaired Center of Monterey County
(Steven Macias)

5-3. Receive presentation on the COA Implementation Measure Q Routes (Michelle
Overmeyer)

REPORTS AND INFORMATION ITEMS

The Committee will receive these report(s), which do not require action by the Committee.
6-1. MV Transit-MST RIDES Service Update (Douglas Thomson)

6-2. MST Mobility Updates (Kevin Allshouse)

. SUBJECT ITEM REQUEST

This item(s) will be included on a future agenda for follow-up
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND APPRECIATIONS
ADJOURN



NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING DATE: September 28, 2022
1:00 p.m.
NEXT SCHEDULED AGENDA DEADLINE: September 14, 2022
*Dates, times and teleconference information are subject to change.

Please contact MST for accurate meeting date, times and teleconference information or
check online at https://www.mstmobility.org/advisory-committee.htm




MEETING OF THE MOBILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MAC)

MEETING MINUTES

March 30, 2022

Present: Jennifer Ramirez Partnership for Children
Jessica McKillip ITN Monterey County
Steven Macias The Blind and Visually Impaired Center
Aaron Hernandez Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC)
Ron Lee AAA-Monterey County Dept. of Social Services
Reyna Gross Alliance on Aging
Absent: Maria Magafna Central Coast Center for Independent Living (CCCIL)
Alejandro Fernandez Davita Dialysis
Leticia Garcia The Carmel Foundation
Bobby Merritt Veterans Transition Center
Staff: Norman Tuitavuki Chief Operating Officer
Cristy Sugabo Mobility Services Manager
Kevin Allshouse Mobility Coordinator
Claudia Valencia Mobility Specialist
Ruben Gomez Mobility Specialist
Marzette Henderson Contract Services Manager
Michelle Overmeyer Director of Planning & Innovation
Sloan Campi Planning Manager
Jeanette Alegar-Rocha Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board
Public: Douglas Thomson MV General Manager

Lucy Casarez
Miranda Taylor

Alliance on Aging
AMBAG

Apology is made for any misspelling of a name.



1. CALL TO ORDER
1-1.  Roll Call.

Chair Ramirez called the meeting to order at 1:03 p.m. with roll call taken as
the meeting was via Zoom teleconference. A quorum was established.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
There were no public comments.
3. CONSENT AGENDA
3-1.  Approve Minutes of the regular meeting of January 26, 2022.
On a motion by Committee Member McKillip, seconded by Committee

Member Macias and carried by the following vote, which was conducted by roll
call, the Committee approved the Minutes:

AYES: 6 McKillip, Ramirez, Macias, Hernandez, Lee, and Gross
NOES: 0

ABSENT: 4 Merritt, Magana, Fernandez, and Garcia

ABSTAIN: 0

4. PUBLIC HEARING

4-1.  Unmet Transit Needs Public Hearing (Aaron Hernandez)

Committee Member Hernandez presented the Unmet Transit Needs process
and Chair Ramirez opened the discussion for public comments. There being no
public comments received, Chair Ramirez closed the public hearing.

5. PRESENTATION

5-1. Received presentation on AMBAG-2022 Coordinated Public Transit-
Human Services Transportation Plan (Miranda Taylor).

There were no public comments.

6. REPORTS AND INFORMATION ITEMS
6-1. MV Transit- MST RIDES Service Update (Douglas Thomson)
6-2. MST Mobility Programs Updates (Kevin Alishouse)

There were no public comments on items 6-1. through 6-2.



7. SUBJECT ITEM REQUEST

7-1. Committee Member Recommendations for Future Presentations.

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND APPRECIATIONS

8-1. Committee Member Announcements and Appreciations.

9. ADJOURN

With no further business to discuss, Chair Ramirez adjourned the meeting
at 1:38 p.m. (Pacific).

PREPARED BY: /ﬁ&m/ Vithncia REVIEWED BY: %“'MMA-

Claudia Valencia Kevin Allshouse







Agenda ltem 3.2.3

TRANSPOATATION RGENLY FOX MONTEREY COUNTY

o o - L SRR ~ TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY
Memorandum

@ TAMC

To: Board of Directors

From: Aaron Hernandez, Assistant Transportation Planner
Meeting Date: June 22,2022

Subject: Unmet Transit Needs

ECOMMENDED ACTION:
RECEIVE list of Monterey County's unmet transit needs.

SUMMARY:

In its role as the Transportation Development Act fund administrator, the Transportation Agency annually seeks public input to identify
unmet transit needs in Monterey County prior to allocating Local Transportation Funds. Staff coordinated with Monterey-Salinas Transit to
evaluate the unmet transit needs comments received through April 30, 2022.

EINANCIAL IMPACT:

At the February 2021 TAMC Board meeting, the Agency apportioned $19,297,686 from the Local Transportation Fund to Monterey-Salinas
Transit. The Transportation Agency can direct public transit operators to implement new services with Local Transportation Funds available
after funding existing services and commitments. Approval of Monterey-Salinas Transit's application for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is expected to
occur at the August TAMC Board meeting.

DISCUSSION:

The Transportation Agency annually conducts outreach to identify unmet transit needs. This unmet needs process is associated with the Local
Transportation Fund (LTF), which is one of two designated funding sources for public transit created by the California Transportation
Development Act (TDA). Local Transportation Funds are generated through a quarter percent of the general sales tax, which are returned to
the county by the California State Board of Equalization and apportioned by the Transportation Agency to county jurisdictions through a
population-based formula for public transit.

The formation of the Monterey-Salinas Transit District and past unmet transit needs findings dictate how the Transportation Agency allocates
Local Transportation Funds. As Monterey-Salinas Transit District members, every city in the county allocates its annual fund apportionment
to Monterey-Salinas Transit for public transit services. The County of Monterey is obligated to allocate approximately 50% of its funds off the
top of the Transit District for public transit and RIDES services with 3/4 mile of the existing fixed-routes, which represents the County
population inside the 3/4 mile zones specified by the Americans with Disabilities Act. The Transportation Agency's 2010 finding on unmet
transit needs allowed Monterey-Salinas Transit to claim the remaining County portion to support existing transit operations countywide.

Prior to allocating these transit funds, the Agency is required to provide for a public hearing and outreach to identify unmet transit needs. The
Transportation Development Act statues required transportation planning agencies using transit funds for local street and road projects, to
implement a public process, including a public hearing, to identify unmet transit needs of transit dependent or disadvantaged persons, and
determine if unmet transit needs can be reasonably met. Because the Transportation Agency no longer allocates transit funds to local streets
and roads, the Agency is no longer required to adopt a finding on unmet transit needs. However, the Agency still continues to solicit public
input on unmet transit needs and places comments into the foliowing categories:

e Transit service improvement requests that would improve an existing service.
e Transit service expansion requests that extend a transit route beyond its current limits and fill a gap in service.
o Capital improvement projects that would enhance existing public transit facilities.

The unmet transit needs process is attached. The unmet transit needs comment list serves as a public input tool for MST's short- and long-
term transit service planning and improvements, and assist in prioritizing transit projects as funds become available. All comments are
reviewed with MST staff to consider options to implement requests based on the time frame in which unmet transit needs can be met. The
MST Mobility Advisory Committee, which serves as the Transportation Agency's Social Services Transportation Advisory Council, also

Page 87 of 135



reviews the comments received in the annual process during their May meeting. However, this year's May meeting was canceled due to a lack
of quorum.

This year, the Transportation Agency received the following comment:

Unmet Need Year Category Timeline Status in 2022

Comment Identified

A pedestrian crossway 2022 N/A N/A This does not meet the definition of an
to safely cross and Unmet Transit Need. However, this
access bus stops at information will be forwarded to the City
Bayer and Reservation of Marina for further review.

Rd in Marina

In the upcoming fiscal year, MST is unable to meet several of the previously identified unmet transit needs in the attached list. For example,
improving connections from North Monterey County to Gavilan College in Gilroy is an unmet transit need that is cost-prohibitive at this time.
Other needs have been addressed and are listed in the charts as "resolved.” The unmet transit needs requests that are not able to be
addressed this year will remain on the list and will be part of next year's unmet transit needs process.

Staff recommends the Board of Directors receive the 2022 Unmet Transit Needs List. The allocation of State Transit Assistance and the
Transportation Development Act funding is expected to be brought for the Board's consideration in August 2022.

ATTACHMENTS:

D Unmet Transit Needs Process
o 2022 Unmet Transit Needs List

Page 88 of 135




A=TAMC

About the Unmet Transit Needs Process

The California Legislature enacted the Transportation Development Act (TDA) in 1971 to improve public
transit services and encourage regional transportation coordination. TDA statutes require transportation
planning agencies using TDA funds for local streets and roads projects, to implement a public process,
including a public hearing, to identify unmet transit needs of transit dependent or disadvantaged
persons, and determine if unmet transit needs can be reasonably met.

In its role as the TDA fund administrator, the Transportation Agency for Monterey County annually
solicits public input to identify unmet transit needs. Although TAMC no longer allocates TDA funds to
local streets and roads, the Agency still continues to solicit public input on unmet transit needs.

The unmet transit needs process begins with public outreach to solicit comments on unmet transit
needs. Public hearings to collect comments on unmet transit needs are held at a meeting of TAMC's
Board of Directors and at a meeting of Monterey-Salinas Transit’s Mobility Advisory Committee, which
serves as TAMC's Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. TAMC's Board of Director’s receives
the final unmet transit needs list of comments.

Unmet Transit Need Definition

An unmet transit need is a public transportation need that the public transportation system is not
currently meeting and would be expected to generate enough ridership to meet the required 10%
farebox recovery ratio pursuant to.

Unmet Transit Need Evaluation
Unmet transit needs are placed into the following categories:

1. Transit service improvement requests that would improve an existing service.
2. Transit service expansion requests that extend a transit route beyond its current limits and fill a

gap in service.
3. Capital improvement projects that would enhance existing public transit facilities.

TAMC shares the list of unmet transit needs comments with Monterey-Salinas Transit, the only public
transportation provider in the county. The unmet transit needs comments list serves as a public input
tool for MST’s short and long term transit service planning and improvements. TAMC works with MST to
evaluate comments based on the time frame in which unmet transit needs can be met:

e Short term transit improvements are those that can be implemented in the current service year
within MST’s funding limits and without negatively impacting existing services.

e Long term transit improvements are those that would require additional funding beyond MST’s
current funding limits. Long term improvement comments remain on the unmet transit needs
comment list until additional funding becomes available.

MST’s Mobility Advisory Committee provides input on the categorized unmet transit needs comments
list. This input serves to prioritize needs in the region, and is used to assist prioritizing transit projects as
funds become available. The TAMC Board of Directors will receive the final list.

Page 89 of 135



G¢1 o 06 abed
€ J0 T 38ed

*spouad

Jnoy yshJa Sulnp Jnoy ue ueyl ssaj ujuun
sassnq s|dijinw yum inoy Aiaas sajelado

€7 2uI ‘sisAjeuy |euoilesad O aaisuayaudwo)
2y} Jopun "91n0J 3y} Jnoysnouys sdois

snq pa3199]9s 1. sdois Yorym ‘Xz aur ‘zeoe ul pepajos
20IMDS ssa4dxD ue pajuawdjdwi sey ISIA "TZ0T JIAIS Bunsixa pue s3|ezuon 0}
30 |je4 ui payajdwod sem paeA sng A1 Suny syl ‘Juawasosdwil wad}-8uo | ue sanoudwi T Alo8aie) 102 92138 Judnbaly aloW

‘sisAjeuy |euoneladQ

anisuayaidwo) ayy jo uoljeluswajdu

3Y1 yum sadiaias Ajanoy anunuod o} pauueld

si pue anoy AuaAa sajetado Ajjuanind gt aui] gt
dUI7 JO JUBWSIS B SIBA0I YdIYym gz0z AMenuer 2IAIDS SuUIISIXD 8T aun

ul D1AIBS 3JINYS JIDY] paydune] gIAINSD ‘Juawaacsdwi wadl-8uoq | ue saaoadwi (T AloSaied ¥10¢ uo Asusnbauy paseauou|

‘sishjeuy |euoliesadp anisuayaidwo) Seuljes ul peoy

ay3 jo uonejuawsa|dwi yum zzoz Jo pus ayl deSe sy [|I2SsSnY pue peoy spelo
Aq ease siy1 ySnoayi 30IAIDS IWINSI |[IM G BUIT ‘JuawaAoidwy wid3-8uo] | ‘931M9s mau 1zg AloBele) 10T uenr ues 03} JAIS
payiluap| uawwo)

2202 ul snjeis aujjpwi] Aiodaje) JeaA paaN 1pwun

‘3|ge|IeAR SBWO0I8C Sulpuny |BEUOIHPPE [13UN 1S1| JUSWILIOD SPIBU JISUBI] J9WUN 3y} UO UIBLUSI SIUS3WILWOI Juawaroidw
w423-SuoT ‘sHwi] Sulpuny JuaLIn3 S,| SN puoAaq Suipuny jeuoiippe alinbal pinom 1ey) asoyl ale sjuawancidwi Jsues) waal-Suol e
'$901/408S Sunsixa Suppedw Ajaainesau
Inoyum pue sywij Sulpuny s, SIA UIYHM JBSA 921AI3S JUaIND 9y} Ul pajuswajdwi 3q ued jey) asoy) aJe sjududaodw] Jsuesy wiidg Joys e
aulBuIl] SpasN ysuel]

‘sali|1aey Hsueu) 2gnd Suisixa asueyua pinom eyl spafoid yuswanosdwi jeyde) "¢

"901/u9s ul degd e [j1} pue S| JUS44NJ S} PUOAIQ 31N0J JISUEeL) B PUDIXD Y] s3sonbai uoisuedxa a01AI9S JISuel] '
"921/43s SBunsixs ue anosdw pjnom eyl sisanbad Juawaaocidwi 331A8S Jsued] T

:S311039383 SUIMO]|0} 3Y} Ojul pade|d aJe Spaau JIsuel] JPuwuf

spaap Hsues] jJawun Ajuno) AalaUoN 2202
Ayuno) Aassquoyy 10j AruaSy uonerodsued j



GEl Jo L6 abed

€ Jo Z =8ed

‘A0JjI9) 01 221MBS YsIjqRISD
-31 0} SpuN} 34N23s 03 Ajoyny uoijeniodsuel |

deg e sy
‘@IS mau 1z AoSale)
32195 Bullsixe

Aoajio

ul @39]|0) uejiARD

0] $5322€ 10} 3|epaunid
pue 3jjinoaise)
Ud3IMIDQ UDIII3UUOD

A3jjeA ede|D) eues yum pom Jim 1SN Juawarosduw waal-8uol | ue saaoudwi (T Alo3aie) 8T0¢T 9y} anosdw|
*AoJ|iD pue soueg
507 Ul SAO1S apn|duL {|tMm YdIYm 9SOf ues 0}
pa3is| wouy 31noa sng mau e uliq o} Sunjiom
s Ajuoyiny siamod uor uinbeor ues ayl
‘J9AOMOH 'sisAjeuy |euonesadQ anisuayaidwo) dege sy soyeq so7 pue ejsiineg
a1 ul Ausonad e se pajisi| Jou St pasu sIy | awaAosduwr wiel-8uol | ‘@a1n9s mau izg Ao3aie) | 8T0Z/STOT uenr ues 03 IJIAIIS
“ed ayy Jo sapis
159M pue 15e3 3y} 0} $193UU0I IDIAIBS |IINYS
215-U0 3y] "s10| Supjied 419y3 Buiziian s10USIA
01 821A49S 3|1INYs asn-Aeq Ss4340 Ajpuadind
B2IAI3G Yaed [euolleN ay] 9I1IA4SS JNNYS yJed e
J9pisuod Aew yaorym ‘1afoid Aemjied sajpeuuld
ay1 404 syuawaaoadwy SuiApnis Ajjuadina A
S| peps|os Jo AN 9y] "uisduod Alajes e os|e aJe Supy pue 1128817 J83UnH
SUOIIPUOD PROJ JUSLIND "SEDIB/SIDIAIBS 1910 HO4 pue yied [euolleN
wouy paledojjeal ulaq $931nosas aanbal pjnom des e sy S9JoBUUI4 UDaM]D(]
pue sAINgIyoad 1502 St 321A49S S3INYS SIYL JuswsAocadw wisl-8u0 | ‘92iIAas mau izg AMo8aie) | 6T0Z/FTOT 2J1M3S 3NNYS

€c0c¢ ul smejs

aujjawil

A1o3ae)

payuap|
Jeap

JusWWo)
FEETNRE

spaap dsues) 1wun Ayuno) Adualuo 2Z0e
Auno) Assauoly 40y Adualy uonepodsuea




Gel Jo g6 obed

€ J € 98ed

‘0L |ul] pue T sun

BIA 9P 9 UBI UOI}IBUUOD B PUk 33IAIDS
sapiaoad | SN “Olwspued 6T-QIAOD

ay1 03 anp pasned Ajuesodway 3|1ym
*10PII0D TOT SN 3Y3 Suoje suawarosdwl
ysuesy Ajnuapt o1 Apnis Suluueld

Hsues) AsjjeA seuijes e pa1odnpuod [SIAl

Adaaluoin
ui Aa1ajuoip Jo Ayuno) ‘eiuioije)
40 1No) Joudng syl pue Ayuno)

paseajal gINSD ‘120z Sulads uj “Jsyjoue
01 5SB|2 U0 WOJ} 195 0} 3wl JO MOPUIM

Sse 2019s Jsuealeled Jo adAy siy) aptaoad
01 1 SIA 404 BuiBuajjeyd 1 »jew IIAIIS

610¢ LTO0Z  YINoS uaamlaq aiaIas panosdu)
'S9IIAIBS 9J1INYS .
sndwed 404 sjesodoud 104 1sanbay e
mouleu AIDA B aARY SIUSPNIS INNSD
‘pasu sndwed-uo Ajjiqow juapnis
SIY} Ssauppe 0} SAem Ssnosip 10} papasau a.e sajdIYaA 3YqIssadde
03 aNUIU0D GINNSD pue 1S 210w ‘sndwed uo IVIAIBS

$3Q1Y Y3 JO spureaISuUod |euonesado
pue sjuawaJlinbal yqy |eJapa4

13AMOY ‘Panjosal 19A JON

910Z/510T Nsuesjesed pasueyua gIANSD |

"8T10C JO ||B} po13Nnpuod

SEM D21AUDS PaouUBYUD 3Y) JO SISAjeue uy
*£T0Z Alnr u1 spuny D a4nseay Suisn sduy
[eaipaw AJuno3 j0 1IN0 JO 1503 3Y) PAIIMO|

pue Acuanbaiy ay) paseasoul IS

- L102
- POA|OS3Y JEdA

$53] 1502 jey}
09 JO 1IN0 IO
oY

spaap iisued] 1wun Ayuno) A3Jajuolnl 20T
Auno) Aasjuopy 103 Adualy uonejrodsued)



(eTAMC =%

EXCELLENT

TRANSPORTATION

*Expected Adoption™® by the TAMC Board of Directors: September 28,
2022

Measure X Senior &
Disabled
Transportation
Program

Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT

Fiscal Years 2023/24, 2024/25, and 2025/26

Grant Applications Due:
Friday, December 2, 2022 @ 5pm PST

Transportation Agency for Monterey County
55-B Plaza Circle
Salinas, CA 93901
Phone: (831) 775-0903
info@tamcmonterey.org




Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION .1vvereereeueereeereressnssunsessssssssesassenenessssosssssessessssnnessssssssssssssiesssseessesasssnssonns 3
IMIEASUIE Xuvunerrrenserresneeesseniornnnnsesnsnsossnssenennuessnsensssnsssssssssssssssessssssesssasssnsnssstusssssnnserssns 3
SENIOR & DISABLED TRANSPORTATION SERVICES PROGRAM OVERVIEW ....coceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieninnan, 4
N EEOS ASSESSIMENT . evrrrerrrrannrerransrernnssrmasserersnersrsssssssssassesensssesserisssesssssssssnsernsssssrosssernnes 4
Program PUrpoSe & GOalS......cuuieiriiinieiiriciiinrieiiiiieiontienitnienieteeeienririnrrasnearnensssssiasnsnss 4
Stakeholders & Representatives cvvvsieerseeieeiseisioeniarnnrariiiiieiierirseriieiereesieetssssrasesensnesnssans 5
FUNDING «.evvueuueruneeeeeerenesseeeesstaesseessossssosssnssesssssssaiasssssssessessssnsssessssssssssesssesssenssnnssnnsnsses 5
PrOSIAM BULZE.uuuerrueneerrnerrernsaserenesssrossemrmusstesnssssresssssssetssmssernnssierssssstsssstsssnsssnssnssrans 5
ELIGIBILITY toeueeresrenarsonaenansssasronssasusesssssunarssssssenssssssssstostsencessessssostssoansssansasonaronannannssnes 1
EliGible APPNCANTS vvevuereernnsieruuaeeeunneerreeeresssessessiusseasssseettsnssertsssserssssesensenmnnsssmssssasennes 1
Eligible ACtIVItIES & EXPENSES .cuuutreuerereerrsereusessasserusrrssemmamemmseesisrsesssisesnseeererseserssssennns 1
MEASUFE X REGUIFEMENTS 1evvvvrruvrsensereeessrnereerenssssnsnnseessorsssesssesesesessssssneerssasssissessssnsenmnans 2
REIMDUISEMENt REQUITEMENTS 1evuerirerurrruererreuererarnesiesesserssnassssssrsassssetssetsernsssssssssessseresnns 3
SELECTION PROUCESS 1eiiieeiarereantrenerscusasssstossseassossssssarossssnsscssessstossssensessonsostsossnsssnanssarasasos 5
STEP 1: SCTEEN PrOPOSAIS uvreuserrenurerreenrraensortassierrsusiettennstesmeniistermsssismssssionsesensnssernaneres 5
SEEP 2: SCOTE PrOPOSAIS.cuuurisuereeuerrueeeressnsererssssusessssserrnssersmeemrimerrestossetessssssterasssassreres 5
StEP 3: ON-SItE FIEld ViSIt vvevveeererrrrurernnserserserenmmmmmemesississsesseseesssetsernassisessessonses 5
Step 4: TAMC Board of Directors APproval c..cvveeceiieiiiiieiieniiiiniiisionieinosnnerseernnsensnaisiissienss 5
EVALUATION/SCORING CRITERIA .. cveetirierreritanionsseniersssssssestescsssssssssssesssassesssesssantosssansensonnas 5
REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION FOR PROPOSAL..ciietiiirisetreecrscrsestessescsnsisaeissstosssosannserasonaassanssnas 6
STEP 1: SCREEN PROPOSALS ..cicictieieeicissttieoarsensssssonsstrsassansasesssarsassanntossusssnsstsnssscansesnsesssse 7
Proposal Submittal and Grant AWard TIMElNe .....ccoverreeierieiiiriieneiiiiiiieiei e seerrennaene 10
APPENDIX A veeevrirerieeioessnisussunsssessssssesmsssssssssnmmsmmesestereeianisnsmssentersttsersseraeetsesssaesassassnsss 11

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Sample Quarterly Reimbursement TIMeline......c.veieiiiieiciiiiic et e e s e aae 12
Sample QUArterly ClAIM v iiiiieeriiieie e eeirecereetieraeeenesenesnerraesetesestornessnsreneenssnsssnsnnesnnnnes 13
Sample Quarterly Progress REPOM ..uciueeirceeienieesreerenieeereneensrssseersssiossessssnessnesnsstosssnsansnnns 15
SAMPIE PrOJECE BUAEET eivneuittiiiirueeneeireintenresstermnetnesnstnssnstionsesssssssesosssnstnennsessssssstonnrannos 17

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

INTRODUCTION

Measure X

The Transportation Agency for Monterey County placed the Transportation Safety
& Investment Plan (Measure X) on the November 8, 2016 ballot. The measure
was approved with 67.7% approval from Monterey County voters. Measure X is
anticipated to generate an estimated $20 million annually for a total of

$600 million over thirty years through a retail transactions and use tax of a three-
eighths of one percent (3/8%). The revenue from the sales tax measure will be
used to fund transportation safety and mobility projects in Monterey County.

Based on extensive community and stakeholder input, Measure X priorities are to:
e Maintain local roads and repair potholes
¢ Increase safety and reduce congestion

¢ Improve transportation for youth, seniors, people with disabilities and
working families

e Make walking and biking safer
Measure X funds are divided into two programs:

1. Local Road Maintenance, Pothole Repairs and Safety: 60% of Measure X
funds are allocated to the County of Monterey and incorporated cities for
local street and road safety and maintenance improvements.

2. Regional Safety, Mobility and Walkability: 40% of Measure X funds are
allocated to regional safety and congestion relief, transit, and
bicycle/pedestrian projects.

The Senior & Disabled Transportation Services Program is part of the Regional
Safety, Mobility and Walkability Measure X Program.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

SENIOR & DISABLED TRANSPORTATION SERVICES PROGRAM
OVERVIEW

Needs Assessment

The Transportation Agency conducted a needs assessment to evaluate the
transportation needs of seniors and people with disabilities by regional sub-areas
of Monterey County.

Program Purpose & Goals

As spelled out in the Policies & Project Descriptions for the Transportation
Safety & Investment Plan:

1. The purpose of this program is to increase transportation services for
seniors and persons with disabilities to support their ability to live
independently in their homes and communities.

2. This program will fund non-profit transportation to support seniors and
persons with disabilities.

3. This program provides the following benefits:
e Give seniors more transportation options
e Support independent travel by people with disabilities

e Provide safer and more reliable senior transportation services

The intent of this program is to fund projects, programs and operations that meet
these goals.

For the purposes of this program, seniors are defined as adults age 65 and over.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Stakeholders & Representatives

Monterey-Salinas Transit Mobility Advisory Committee

The MST Mobility Advisory Committee serves as TAMC’s Social Services
Transportation Advisory Council. In that capacity, the Committee serves as the
stakeholder group for the development and implementation of this Measure X
program. Membership of the Committee includes representatives from
organizations that serve seniors, people with disabilities, veterans, and low-
income people. The Committee is comprised of the following organizations:

I
United Way Central Coast Center for ndepc?ndent
Monterey Count Independent Livin P kel AT
y ¥ P g (ITN) Monterey County
Visiting Nurse Monterey County Veteran'’s Transition
Association Area Agency on Aging Center
Interim, Inc. MC Military & Veteran’s Affairs The Carmel Foundation

The Blind and Visually Impaired

Center Partnership for Children

Alliance on Aging

Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee

The Transportation Agency’s Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee will also
participate in the development of the grant guidelines, evaluation of proposals,
and in the submittal of recommendations for funding to the Transportation
Agency’s Board of Directors.

FUNDING

Program Budget

This program funding allocation is $15 million over 30 years, which is
approximately $500,000 per year. Implementation strategies were developed
with the assistance of the Monterey-Salinas Transit Mobility Advisory Committee.
The Committee recommended funding be available in 3 to 5-year funding cycles.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Approximately $1.5 million was set aside for each of the program’s past 3-year
cycles. Funds not expended in the current funding cycle will be carried forward
and made available in future cycles.

Organizations may submit one-year or multi-year project funding requests.
Organizations can also submit more than one application per grant cycle
reflecting different operational or capital needs.

ELIGIBILITY

Eligible Applicants

Measure X Senior & Disabled Mobility Program funds are available for:
e 501(c)3 non-profit organizations that serve Monterey County residents.

¢ Organizations or collaborative projects that are not registered 501(c)3 non-
profit organizations can partner with a tax-exempt, 501(c)3 non-profit
organization that will serve as a fiscal sponsor for project implementation.

e Public agencies may be eligible if they partner with 501(c)3 non-profit
organizations to complete the work included in the grant proposal.

Eligible Activities & Expenses

This program provides grants for projects that increase transportation services for
seniors and persons with disabilities to support their ability to live independently
in their homes and communities.

Eligible activities include, but are not limited to:

e Purchase or lease of accessible vehicles and vans.

e Purchase of computer hardware, software or other equipment that will
support mobility programs.

e Operation expenses directly related to transportation service provided to
seniors and/or disabled residents of Monterey County.

e Planning, development, and implementation of mobility service area
and/or hours expansions.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Marketing campaigns to promote mobility services for seniors and persons
with disabilities.
Voucher, mileage reimbursement and/or other trip subsidy programs.

Measure X Requirements

The grantee must comply with the program purpose and goals as spelled
out in the Policies & Project Descriptions for the Transportation Safety &
Investment Plan.

For ease of tracking and to assure full transparency, the grantee must
maintain all revenues received and expenditures of these funds accounted
for and tracked in its own separate account titled “Transportation Safety &
Investment Plan Account.” The grantee will not comingle these funds with
any other funds.

Grantees shall use all Measure X funds solely for transportation purposes as
defined by your Funding Agreement. Grantees that violate this provision
must fully reimburse all misspent funds.

Media Requirements. Organizations selected for funding must use the
Measure X logo when promoting projects, programs or services funded by
this Measure X program and acknowledge the Measure X program in news
releases. Measure X funds can only be used to cover costs proportional to
the promotional activities included in the scope of the grant award.

Annual Report. Under no circumstances may the proceeds of this
transportation sales tax be applied to any purpose other than for
transportation projects, programs, and activities. Awarded applicants will
certify in an annual verification submitted to TAMC that these
transportation funds were used for eligible expenses. Organizations
selected for funding must provide an annual report documenting
communities served and success meeting project goals and proposed
outcomes.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

e Funding Agreement. Organizations selected for funding must sign a funding
agreement with TAMC.

o Audits. TAMC reserves the right to audit organizations that are awarded
funding under this project.

¢ Quarterly Reimbursement. Organizations selected for funding are required
to complete reporting and invoicing on a quarterly basis. A one-time
advancement would be considered.

Reimbursement Requirements

The project sponsor has three fiscal years (FY 23/24, 24/25, and 25/26) to expend
the funds. Expenses can be incurred once the Funding Agreement has been
signed by all parties.

Costs are to be invoiced on a quarterly basis and must comply with the Policies &
Project Descriptions for the Transportation Safety & Investment Plan. Please see
Appendix A for a sample quarterly reimbursement timeline.

All claims must include the following to be deemed valid for reimbursement:

e Quarterly Claim — Each quarterly claim must include the following to be
deemed complete:

o TAMC claim cover sheet.

o Project budget with expenses to date and remaining funds.
o Documentation of competitive procurement selection.

o Invoices/receipts and applicable backup documentation.

¢ Quarterly Progress Report — Each quarterly progress report must include
the following to be deemed complete:

o Summary of activities to date (including brief discussion on
successes, lessons learned and challenges, as applicable).

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/wWorking
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

o Attachments of program deliverables (i.e., number of trips provided,
number of non-trip mobility services provided, flyers, news releases,
log of grant-funded vehicle trips and maintenance).

o Summary of metrics used to track services provided (i.e., average
cost per trip and/or average cost per non-trip mobility services
provided).

o Photos of grant funded events or activities.

The Transportation Agency Measure X Senior and Disabled Transportation
Program Project Manager, Finance Officer, and Executive Director will review and
recommend approval or rejection of the claims.

Please see Appendix A for a sample quarterly claim and progress report.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

SELECTION PROCESS

Step 1: Screen Proposals

e Applicants submit Proposals to TAMC staff.

e TAMOC staff screens proposals for completeness and compliance with the
program guidelines. Incomplete or noncompliant Proposals may be
removed from the competitive process or TAMC staff may request
applicants to provide additional information.

Step 2: Score Proposals
e Proposals will be evaluated by a grant review committee for scoring.
e The grant review committee will be made up of TAMC staff, representatives
from the Monterey-Salinas Transit Mobility Advisory Committee, and the
Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee.

Step 3: On-Site Field Visit

e Site visits are conducted for the most competitive projects.

e The on-site field visit will be made up of TAMC staff and the grant review
committee. Additional information and/or documentation may be
requested from applicants.

¢ Final scoring provided to the Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee.

Step 4: TAMC Board of Directors Approval
e Once Step 3 evaluations have been completed, the Measure X Citizens
Oversight Committee submits recommendations for funding to the
Transportation Agency’s Board of Directors.
e Upon approval by the Board, grant awards are announced. The TAMC
Board of Directors maintains discretion in amending the grant awards
based on funding availability, and in making full or partial awards.

EVALUATION/SCORING CRITERIA
Information provided during the evaluation process should demonstrate how
effectively the Proposal meets Measure X requirements and program goals.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT

Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Proposals will be evaluated using the scoring criteria noted in the table below.

Proposals will receive an initial ranking with a score of 100 points possible.

Points will be attributed to each category and not to individual questions.

Scoring Criteria Points
Program Purpose & Goals 25 points
Program Benefits 30 points
Feasibility 15 points
Geographic Equity 15 points
Cost Effectiveness 15 points
Total Points Possible 100 points

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION FOR PROPOSAL

The following documents must be sent to TAMC staff as part of the Proposal:

1. Proposal Sighature Page — The signature page of the completed Proposal
should be printed and signed by the Authorized Representative and/or Grant
Coordinator. The Grant Coordinator will be the main point of contact for the

duration of the grant.

2. Project Budget — The project budget provides a cost estimate reflecting all

costs associated with the project by fiscal year. Identify costs to be funded by

the Measure X grant and costs covered by other funding sources (see

Appendix A for a sample Project Budget template).

3. Project Timeline — The project timeline outlines the main tasks needed to
implement the project and includes a timeline to complete each task.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working

Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx




Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

STEP 1: SCREEN PROPOSALS

Applicants are required to submit a Proposal to TAMC staff (refer to the Proposal
Submittal and Grant Award Timeline section for due dates). Applicants with
complete and compliant Proposals will be invited to compete in the next step of
the evaluation process.

All Proposal submittals will include the following:

Project Title
Provide a brief project title.
Organization’s History

Provide a brief description of your organization’s history providing services to
seniors and/or people with disabilities in Monterey County.

Project Summary and Need

Describe the project to be funded, including the main services provided and any
expected project deliverables. Explain the transportation need that the project is
addressing. Summaries are limited to 1,000 words.

How many part-time, full-time staff and/or volunteers will be involved in
implementing the proposal?

Project Questions

Applicants must answer the following questions, as applicable. If a question does
not apply to the project, indicate “not applicable” with a brief explanation. Do
not leave blank fields. Answers are limited to 500 words for each question.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Program Purpose & Goals — 25 points

1. Explain how your organization currently supports the transportation
needs of seniors and/or people with disabilities. (500 words max.)

2. Does your organization provide transportation or purchase
transportation from others? Explain. (500 words max.)

3. Explain how the project coordinates with, and avoids duplication of,
other efforts in the county to increase (provide new or alternate)
transportation services to seniors and/or people with disabilities. (500
words max.)

Program Benefits — 30 points

4. Explain how the Measure X grant funding will increase (provide new or
alternate) transportation services to:

a. Give seniors more transportation options. (500 words max.)

b. Support independent travel by people with disabilities. {500
words max.)

c. Provide safer and more reliable senior transportation services.
(500 words max.)

Feasibility — 15 points

5. Are there any actions required by other organizations to implement the
proposed project? (500 words max.)

6. What will happen to the proposed project if Measure X grant funding is
not awarded (e.g., loss of matching funds, impacts on overall project
vision, project momentum, timing difficulties, etc.)? (500 words max.)

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Waorking
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Geographic Equity — 15 points

7. ldentify which sub-area of Monterey County (North Monterey County,
Greater Salinas Area, Monterey Peninsula, South Monterey County, Big
Sur Coast) this project will benefit. (500 words max.)

8. ldentify which sub-areas (North Monterey County, Greater Salinas Area,
Monterey Peninsula, South Monterey County, Big Sur Coast) the
proposed project will provide trips. (500 words max.)

9. Describe partnerships with other entities and their corresponding roles
(if any) in the proposed project. (500 words max.)

Cost Effectiveness — 15 points
10.Explain how your organization’s services are provided:
a. Number of trips and average cost per trip. (500 words max.)

b. Number of non-trip mobility services provided and average cost
per non-trip mobility service provided. (500 words max.)

11.Submit a completed Project Budget.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Proposal Submittal and Grant Award Timeline

Date
June 22, 2022

July 27, 2022

August 16, 2022

September 28, 2022

December 1, 2022

@ 12pm PST
December 5-21, 2022

January 17, 2023

February 22, 2023

Task

TAMC Board of Directors releases draft
guidelines and needs assessment for public
review.

MST Mobility Advisory Committee reviews
draft guidelines and needs assessment.
Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee
reviews draft guidelines and needs
assessment.

Call for projects open.

Cycle 2 applications due.

Grant Review Committee meets to score
applications.

Grant Review Committee submits funding
recommendations to Measure X Citizens
Oversight Committee.

TAMC Board of Directors adopts Program of
Projects for Fiscal Years 2023/24, 2024/25,
2025/26.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

APPENDIX A

e Sample Quarterly Reimbursement Timeline
e Sample Quarterly Claim

e Sample Quarterly Progress Report

e Sample Project Budget

e Sample Project Timeline

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Sample Quarterly Reimbursement Timeline

FY 2023/24
Quarter No. Months Covered Due Date
Q1 July 2023 — September 2023 October 31, 2023
Q2 October 2023 — December 2023 January 31, 2024
Q3 January 2024 — March 2024 April 30, 2024
Q4 April 2024 - June 2024 July 31, 2024
FY 2023/24 Report July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 December 31, 2024
FY 2024/25
Quarter No. Months Covered Due Date
Q1 July 2024 - September 2024 October 31, 2024
Q2 October 2024 — December 2024 January 31, 2025
Q3 January 2025 — March 2025 April 30, 2025
Q4 April 2025 - June 2025 July 31, 2025
FY 2024/25 Report July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025 December 31, 2025
FY 2025/26
Quarter No. Months Covered Due Date
Ql July 2025 — September 2025 October 31, 2025
Q2 October 2025 — December 2025 January 31, 2026
Q3 January 2026 — March 2026 April 30, 2026
Q4 April 2026 — June 2026 July 31, 2026
Close Out Report FY 2023/24, 2024/25, and 25/26 July 31, 2026

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working

Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Sample Quarterly Claim

1. TAMC Claim Cover Sheet
Complete and sign the top section of the TAMC claim cover sheet.

TRANSPORTATON AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY
CLAIM COVER SHEET
MEASURE X SENIOR AND DISABLED TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (Fund 7200}
REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT

Fiscal Year Quarter No.
The larantee nomel a 501(c}3 non-profit organization in Monterey County,
requests reimbursement in the amount of _Sfamount]! . For the period beginning fmonath, dav,
year] and through and inclusive of ___{manth, day, veor] .

| certify that | am a duly authorized representative of [grantee name] _and the request for
reimbursement is consistent with the terms of the Measure X Grant Funding Agreement dated
[month, day, year] entered into betwean _farontee nome} and the TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR
MONTEREY COUNTY.

Total Measure X Grant Amount S
Amount Invoiced to Date S
Current Invoice S
Balance [

Name (Please pring) Signature Date

APPROVAL OF TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

| certify that | am duly authorized by the TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY to
approve payment to the _ {grantee name] in the amount of __S fomount] . The request for
reimbursement is consistent with the Measure X Grant Funding Agreement between the
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY and _ [grantee name] .

1. TAMC Project Manager

Name (Please print) Signature Date

2. TAMC Director of Finance and Administration

Name (Please print) Signature Date

3. TAMC Executive Director

Name (Please print) Signature Date

Datz TAMC Received Invoice Dasle rwoice Revision Notificalion Sent Date fnvoice Sent o Accounting

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

2. Expenses Breakdown
Provide a breakdown of expenses by each expense category included in the

Project Budget.

Expenses
Personnel
Salary Program Manager...............eeeecoseseecessnnesss S
DEIVEE WOQES.....cccvirrvreriresersseersssssssnsassossssssesessssenseas S
TAXES AN BENESiLS.....cceeeveervrvrrrrenrverensresessensensoarseesns s
TOTAL PERSONNEL..........uuuvsverccrssrssscssscsssssssonnsorsossonssonsess S
Other Expenses
Program EQUIPMENT.............ccceevresssissseeseesssesenssassones S
PUDICATIONS cceeeeeeeecervecressvversrersevsesrsssssssssssssessssseses S
RNt AN ULIItI@S....coceeeeseeeeesreseresressrvressssssrenssases S
TrAVE] VOUCREIS....ucooeeveeveeereerrveeeveesrerenssesssasssenesonees S
VERICIE PUFCHASE......oueveeecereeeverreevsevrevveresnsasvasvoesses S
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES......cuovvvvivereisivvseveennrerercssecsssennens S

TOTAL EXPENSES.........coovcervsuvivrvivesnssasisssersosarssonannes s

3. Receipts and Quotes

Provide copies of receipts/invoices for grant-related purchases. Include quotes for
price comparison and procurement justification. Backup documentation should
be separated either by each expense category of the Project Budget or separated
by the month the expense was incurred.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Sample Quarterly Progress Report

1. Summary of Activities to Date
Provide a brief discussion on successes, lessons learned, and challenges, as
applicable. As an example:

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2020/21, the organization completed the
following activities: procurement and purchase of program equipment, developed
marketing materials, and recruited two new drivers. This quarter the organization
faced challenges recruiting drivers because applicants did not meet all job
requirements.

2. Attachments of Program Deliverables

Provide an attachment of program deliverables (i.e., number of trips provided,
number of non-trip mobility services provided, flyers, news releases, log of grant-
funded vehicle trips, and maintenance, as applicable). As an example:

Attached to this report are the following program deliverables for the first quarter
of fiscal year 2020/21:

1. Program Equipment Specifications
2. Marketing Materials

3. Driver Job Posting

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

3. Summary of Metrics Used to Track Services Provided

Provide a summary of metrics used to track services prO\}ided (i.e., average cost
per trips and/or average cost per non-trip mobility services provided). As an
example:

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2020/21, the organization did not provide
any direct services to seniors and/or people with disabilities. However, the
average cost of the program equipment is roughly $7 while the average cost of
the marketing materials is approximately 512.

4. Photos of Grant Funded Events or Activities
Include at least one photo of grant-funded events or activities. As an example:

Attached to this report are the following photo(s) for the first quarter of fiscal year
2020/21:

1. Photo of program equipment.

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Sample Project Budget

The project budget provides a cost estimate reflecting all costs associated with
the project by fiscal year. Identify costs to be funded by the Measure X grant and
costs covered by other funding sources.

Name of Organization: Project Title

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL
Measure X £ 20t i e Matching Project

EXPENSES Budget [N Funds Cost

Personel Expenses

Salary Program Manager $ 150,000.00 $ 50,000.00 $ 50,000.00 % 50,000.00 § 20,000.00 $ 170,000.00
Driver Wages $ 200,000.00 $ 66,000.00 $ 67,000.00 $ 67,000.00 § 25000060 $ 225,000.00
Taxes and Benefits $ 60,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $ 20,00000 $ 2000000 & 500000 $ 65,000.00
Total Personel Expenses §  470,000.00 $ 13600000 $  137,00000 $§  137,00000 § 5000000 §  460,000.00

Other Expenses
Program Equipment $ 6,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 2,00000 $ 2,000.00 $ - 8 6,000.00
Publications $ 13,500.00 $ 8,000.00 $ 3,500.00 $ 2,000.00 § - s 13,500.00
Rent and Utilities $ 30,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,00000 §  30,00000 $ 60.000.00
Travel Vouchers $ 6,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 9,000.00
Vehicle Purchase $ 7500000 $ 2500000 $ 2500000 $ 2500000 $ - 8 75.000.00
Total Other Expenses § 130,500.00 $ 47,000.00 § 42,500.00 $ 41,000.00 $§ 33,000.00 's 163,500.00 4
TOTAL GRANT REQUEST § 640,500.00 $ 183,000.00 $ 179,500.00 $ 178,000.00 $ 83,000.00 $ 623,500.00

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

Sample Project Timeline

The project timeline must outline the main tasks needed to implement the
project and include a timeline to complete each task. Sample project tasks are
provided below.

1. Project Initiation
Task 1.1 Project Kick-Off Meeting

e Brief Task Description: [Sample Text: The organization will hold a kick-off meeting with
TAMC and other project partners to discuss grant procedures and project expectations
including involving, quarterly reporting, and all other relevant project information.]

e Project Deliverable: [Sample Text: Meeting Notes]
e Expected Completion Date: [Sample Text: August 2020]
Task 1.2 Release Job Posting for Drivers

o Brief Task Description: [Sample Text: Complete recruitment process for selection of
qualified drivers with superb customer services skills.]

e Project Deliverable: [Sample Text: Job Posting]
e Expected Completion Date: [Sample Text: October 2020]
Task 1.3 [Task Title]
o Brief Task Description: [provide a brief task description]
e Project Deliverable: [provide a brief project deliverable description]
o Expected Completion Date: [provide the month and year of expected completion date]

2. Public Outreach

Task 2.1 [Task Title]
o Brief Task Description: [provide a brief task description]
e Project Deliverable: [provide a brief project deliverable description]

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx



Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Program Grant Program Guidelines DRAFT
Expected Adoption by the TAMC Board of Directors September 28, 2022

¢ Expected Completion Date: [provide the month and year of expected completion date]

3. Transportation Service

Task 3.1 [Task Title]
e Brief Task Description: [provide a brief task description]

® Project Deliverable: [provide a brief project deliverable description]

o Expected Completion Date: [provide the month and year of expected completion date]

4. Fiscal Management

Task 4.1 [Task Title]

¢ Brief Task Description: [provide a brief task description]

® Project Deliverable: [provide a brief project deliverable description]

¢ Expected Completion Date: [provide the month and year of expected completion date]

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Program Guidelines.docx






Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment

for Seniors and Persons with Disabilities

Prepared by the
Transportation Agency for Monterey County

TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY EXCELLENT
TRANSPORTATION

DRAFT

June 2022



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Chapter 1
INTRODUCTION

The number of Monterey County residents 75 years of age and older is projected to increase
from 19,000 in 2000 to 44,000 in 2030. The health and well-being of seniors and persons with
disabilities depends on their ability to travel to health care, engage in social activities, and go
shopping independently. The Transportation Agency's Measure X Senior & Disabled
Transportation Program currently funds non-profit transportation services to support seniors
and persons with disabilities.

Purpose of Study
The key objectives of this study are to:

¢ Review existing transportation services to determine the most effective way to spend
current and future Measure X funding for the Senior & Disabled Transportation Services
Program;

» Determine where there are gaps in service, potential enhancements, and opportunities
for improved coordination; and

« Propose short- and long-term strategies to cover identified gaps.

Measure X

In November 2016, voters of Monterey County passed Measure X which, by enacting a tax of
three-eighths of one percent (0.375%) over a period of thirty (30) years, will help pay for
regional and local transportation projects and programs in the Transportation Safety and
Investment Plan. The sales tax is expected to generate an estimated $20 million annually, for a
total of $600 million.

Measure X funds are divided into two programs:

1. Local road maintenance, pothole repairs, and safety: 60% of Measure X funds are
allocated to the County of Monterey and incorporated cities for specific projects.

2. Regional safety, mobility, and walkability: 40% of Measure X funds are allocated to
regional safety and congestion relief, transit, and bicycle/pedestrian projects.

The Transportation Agency’s Senior & Disabled Transportation Services Program is part of the
Regional Safety, Mobility and Walkability Measure X Program. The purpose of this program is to
increase transportation services for seniors and persons with disabilities to support their ability
to live independently in their homes and communities. Per Measure X policies, this program is
intended to fund non-profit organizations.

This program funding allocation is $15 million over 30 years, which is approximately $500,000
per year.

Page 2 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepaint.com/Shared Dacuments/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment

Summary of Cycle 2 Measure X Funded Programs

DRAFT June 2022

Approximately $1.5 million were set aside for the program’s second 3-year cycle covering fiscal
years 2020/21, 2021/22, and 2022/23 (July 2020 to June 2023). Funds not expended in the
current funding cycle will be carried forward and made available in future cycles. Table 1-1
summarizes the programs awarded funds in the second grant cycle. Table 1-2 summarizes the
work completed by each applicant from January 2021 to December 2021, including funds
expended and funds remaining.

Table 1-1

Applicant

Cycle 2 Measure X Senior & Disabled Transportation Successful Applications

Project Title

Summary

Total

Request

Total Project
Budget

Average

Score

Average
Rank

Independent Dignified 24hrs/7days
Transportation Transportation transportation to
Network (ITN) for Seniors and seniors and $930,000 | $1,702,834.50 97.25 1.2
Monterey Visually Impaired | visually impaired
County Adults adulis.
Provide trainings,
. and advocacy to
SEhior increase
Alliance on Transportation | 4 soortation in | $287,000 |  $346,000 91.25 18
Aging Coordination and
. South and North
Advocacy Project
Monterey
County.
Transportation T':: ?::fltiy
for Senior and P g-
. provide low-
FEBPIE With income senior
Josephine Disabilities to and disabled
Kernes Receive Y ; $177,000 | $200,859.37 80 3.2
: ’ residents with
Memorial Pool | Therapeutic .
. transportation to
Services at
\ attend
Josephine Kernes :
therapeutic
Pool .
aquatics.
Traneptation Increase eX{stlng
. transportation
Partnership for Shadle o services for
. P Children Living . o $297,000 $682,150 88.5 2.6
Children . . children living
with Serious : .
with serious
Iliness .
illness.
Page 3 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment

Table 1-2

Applicant

Partnership
for Children

DRAFT June 2022

Cycle 2 Summary of Work Completed (January 2021 to December 2021)

Project Title

Transportation
Services for
Children Living with
Serious lllness

Summary of Work Completed

Purchased one mid-sized vehicle
to transport children to Bay Area
hospitals.

Provided 231 rides for hospital
visits, medical appointments, and
legal appointments.

Added an additional Program
Services Coordinator.

Funds
Expended

$111,280.92

Funds
Remaining

$185,969.08

Josephine
Kernes
Memorial
Pool

Kernes Pool
Transportation
Voucher Program

No Measure X activities were
conducted through this year due
to COVID-19. The Kernes
Adaptive Aquatics’ facility and
programs were closed during this
time, but have resumed in FY
2021-22 Quarter 2.

S0

$128,859.37

Alliance on
Aging

Senior
Transportation
Coordination and
Advocacy Project

Coordinated steering
committees with North and
South County stakeholder to
help ITN launch their Rural Pilot
Expansion Program.

Attended outreach events,
developed transportation
services flyer and coordinated
interagency meetings.
Distributed MST bus passes.

$70,274.64

$216,725.36

ITN
Monterey
County

Dignified
Transportation of
Seniors and Visually
Impaired Adults

Provided over 5,195 arm-
through-arm, door-through-door
rides.

Added 91 new members and
recruited and trained 10 new
volunteers.

Partnered with Meals on Wheels
to delivery lunches 5 days a week
during the “Shelter in Place”
mandate to over 280 seniors.
Expanded partnerships with
Alliance on Aging to seniors living
in North and South Monterey
County Regions.

$255,969.55

$674,030.45

Page 4 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working

Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Local Context

Monterey County covers 3,771 square miles of coastal mountains and valley stretching along
100 miles of the California coastline. The County is considered mostly rural with scattered
unincorporated communities and small towns. However, the City of Salinas and the Monterey
Peninsula cities are urban in nature.

Monterey County can generally be divided into five sub-areas:

1. North Monterey County: including the unincorporated communities of Castroville,
Prunedale, Moss Landing, Pajaro and Aromas;

2. Greater Salinas area: including Salinas and unincorporated communities to the west;

3. Monterey Peninsula: including the cities of Marina, Seaside, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey,
Pacific Grove, Carmel-by-the-Sea, and the unincorporated communities of Pebble Beach
and Carmel Valley;

4. South Monterey County: including the Salinas Valley cities of Gonzales, Soledad,
Greenfield and King City, as well as the unincorporated communities of Chualar, San
Lucas, San Ardo, and Bradley; and

5. Big Sur Coast: between Carmel and San Luis Obispo County.

Seniors are showing a preference to age in place rather than relocate to traditional retirement
communities elsewhere. The mild coastal climate also encourages seniors to relocate to the
Monterey Bay Area to enjoy their golden years. Seniors and people with disabilities sometimes
require out-of-county medical trips to facilities in Santa Clara County and San Francisco.

Due to the range of geographies (rural areas, unincorporated towns, areas surrounding
incorporated cities) and client needs in Monterey County, one service type often cannot
effectively serve the needs of all seniors and persons with disabilities living in various parts of
the County.

Figure 1-1 illustrates the study area.

Summary of Prior and Current Studies

The first step of the Study reviews existing studies and planning documents about paratransit
and senior mobility services in Monterey County and the Monterey Bay Area region.

Transportation Alternatives for Rural Areas - A Regional Study, Association of Monterey Bay
Area Governments (AMBAG), 2017

This study provides a high-level overview of the characteristics of the rural communities and
the transit services that operate in the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments
{AMBAG) region. The study established rural study areas in Monterey, San Benito and Santa
Cruz counties, where strategic investments in transit projects and other transportation services
have the best chance for success.

Page 5 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

The study provides the following overarching problem statement for alternative transportation
in rural areas:

Transit service in rural communities often lack effectiveness and efficiency due to: cultural and
language barriers that inhibit effective public engagement that hampers the planning process;
lack of funding and funding partnership opportunities; land uses that do not support high
quality transit service; and a lack of policies that govern the appropriate balance between
providing regional connectivity and local access.

Findings from this study include:

« Even though a high number of people live relatively close to a transit line, transit service in
rural areas tends to be infrequent.

» Land uses that do not support high quality transit service and provide less opportunity for
walking or biking.

e Cultural and language barriers can inhibit effective public engagement that hampers the
planning process.

o Lack of funding and funding partnership opportunities.

o Lack of policies that govern the appropriate balances between providing regional
connectivity and local access.

e Each rural community has its own unique needs — there is no “one strategy fits all”.

Potential strategies to rural challenges from these studies include:

e User Subsidized Program with Taxi and Transportation Network Companies: by partnering
with taxi companies and transportation network companies (i.e., Uber & Lyft), transit
agencies are essentially extending a user subsidy program to provide on-demand rural
neighborhood-based transportation at a lower cost, helping user’s access destinations
within their communities and high quality transit that may be inaccessible otherwise.

e Expansion of Transit Sponsored Vanpools: vanpool groups in rural areas either self-organize
or are assisted in organizing by the transit agency. Then the group applies to be a transit
sponsored vanpool. While arrangements vary, in general the transit agency supplies the van
along with the subsequent maintenance to the group. In return the vanpool group pays a
monthly fare that can be shared among members to the transit agency.

e Development of Mobility Hubs & Express Transit Service: mobility hubs are transportation
centers located opportunely that could be served by higher-frequency express transit.
These centralized multimodal developments in rural towns can be linked by rapid transit
service creating connectivity to urban destinations and the greater region in addition to
making short trips within the neighborhood to other destinations.

¢ Rural Transit Oriented Development: a type of community development that includes a
mixture of housing, office, retail and/or other amenities integrated into a walkable

Page 6 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx




Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

neighborhood and located near public transportation station or hub. This strategy would be
best explored in rural towns and jurisdictions that are linked to major transit corridors and
basic town centers already exist. The transit service needed in these areas would need to be
served by high quality express type transit service in order to link them to urban areas in a
time effective manner.

Measure Q Transit Investment Plan for Seniors, Veterans, and People with Disabilities,
Monterey-Salinas Transit, 2016

In November 2014, the voters of Monterey County approved Measure Q, a countywide
1/8-cent sales tax measure for public transit to be used solely to protect transportation
programs that serve veterans, seniors, and people with disabilities, and to identify new
programs that will meet the mobility needs of these communities. The Measure Q Transit
Investment Plan provides guidance on how to invest the approximately $7.5 million per year
that is anticipated to be generated by this tax over 15 years.

The Plan’s highest priority is to preserve existing services, including fixed-route capital and
technological needs, RIDES ADA paratransit service, senior- and veteran- focused shuttles, taxi
vouchers, and bus stop accessibility improvements.

Six new projects are expected to be implemented by 2024:

1. Expand the MST Navigators program to serve more passengers who need assistance
navigating the transit system.

2. Pilot flex voucher program that will allow residents to use vouchers for transportation
options in additional to MST’s taxi voucher program.

3. Nominate veterans for free passes to honor veterans for their outstanding service or simply
to provide extra help

4. Launch a veterans-helping-veterans program that will include training of veterans to help
other veterans use public transit

5. Assist families and friends with volunteer driver reimbursements to encourage use of
informal mobility support networks

6. Purchase a Paratransit Emergency Response Module to allow MST to dynamically manage
ADA paratransit service disruptions due to local or regional emergency situations

Long-Term Projects:

The Long-Term Vision Plan includes worthy projects that will be considered as additional
funding becomes available. Some may be implemented on an incremental basis depending on
additional grants or other funding availability.

¢ Taxi Voucher Program expansion to veterans

o Paratransit Easy Wallet that can offer passengers the ability to prepay fares at the time of
booking using a virtual account

¢  Weekly medical transportation pilot program outside of Monterey County

e Community transportation services grant program funding

Page 7 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepaint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Figure 1-1 Map of Study Area

Page 8 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx




Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Source: Transportation Alternatives for Rural Areas - A Regional Study, Association of Monterey Bay Area
Governments (AMBAG), 2017

2015 Transit Routes (including 3/4-mile RIDES ADA service

: SAN BENITO

!
ACRIC GEDVE H 7’
ﬁ _'.‘:_-"- SALINAS
SAND CY, L )
i
I‘\‘ r
A, i
DA
A =
' EREY
3, DEL REY OAKS
TN GOMTALES
ARMEL BY-THE- S84
SOUDAD

MONTEREY

\ GREENFRLD

win ey \ O\

e S Trarsa Routes
A Mie Bufter

0153 6 Mies
e o o |

Source: Monterey Bay Area Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan,
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG), 2018

Page 9 of 24
https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working

Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.dacx




Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

American Community Survey — Statistical Geographic Boundaries

Monterey County is composed of a range of geographies, including rural areas, unincorporated
towns, incorporated cities, and areas surrounding incorporated cities. To account for this range
of geographies, two statistical boundaries set by U.S. Census Bureau for the American
Community Survey (ACS) were used to determine the geographical distribution of seniors and
persons with disabilities in Monterey County:

1. Census Designated Place (CDP) — the statistical counterpart of incorporated places and are
delineated to provide data for settled concentrations of population that are identifiable by
name but not legally incorporated under the laws of the state in which they are located.

2. Census County Division (CCD) — a subdivision of a county that is relatively permanent
statistical area established by the Census Bureau and state and local government
authorities. Used for presenting decennial census statistics in those states that do not have
well-defined and stable minor civil divisions that serve as local government.

Table 1-2 Census Designated Places and Census County Divisions in Monterey County

Census County Division (CCD)

Census Designated Place (CDP)

Incorporated Cities | Unincorporated Towns Rural Areas
Carmel-by-the-Sea Aromas Big Sur
Del Rey Oaks Boronda Carmel-by-the-Sea
Gonzales Bradley Carmel Valley
Greenfield Carmel Valley Village Castroville
King City Castroville Gonzales
Marina Chualar Greenfield
Monterey Del Monte Forest King City
Pacific Grove Eikhorn Pajaro
Salinas Las Lomas Salinas
Sand City Lockwood San Ardo
Seaside Moss Landing Seaside-Monterey
Soledad Pajaro Soledad
Pine Canyon Toro Park
Prunedale
San Ardo
San Lucas
Spreckles

Maps included in Appendix A and Appendix B illustrate the geographical distribution of seniors
and people with disabilities in Monterey County, respectively. Table 1-3 summarizes the senior

Page 10 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment

DRAFT June 2022

and disabled populations in Monterey County. In order to avoid double counting, the
population with a disability numbers do not include seniors who are also disabled.

Table 1-3 Senior and Disabled Populations in Monterey County
Jurisdiction Population : 65 and older ) 65-74 75 and older ”Population with a disability
Aromas 2,609 355 260 95 152
Castroville 6,332 725 474 251 485
Elkhorn 998 172 92 80 89
Las Lomas 3,818 157 125 32 219
'L‘"a::'sing 31 4 4 0 2
Pajaro 3,509 143 89 54 226
Prunedale 20,538 3,254 2,210 1,044 1,069
TOTAL 37,835 4,810 3,254 | 1,556 2,242

Jurisdiction

‘Jurisdiction | Population | ]65 and older | 65-74 75 and older i Population with a disability
Boronda 1,740 180 147 33 76

Salinas 155,281 14,023 8,291 5,732 6,839

Spreckels 373 180 128 52 0

TOTAL 157,394 14,383 8,566 | 5,817 6,915

Population 65 and older 75 and older Population with a disability
Carmel-by- 3,789 1,900 1,154 746 69
the-Sea
Carmel 4,175 1,594 1,265 | 329 39
Valley

Page 11 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment

DRAFT June 2022

Del Monte 3,723 1,789 880 909 22
Forest

Del Rey Oaks | 1,508 334 224 110 131
Marina 21,857 3,025 1,687 1,338 1,542
Monterey 25,183 5,190 2,693 2,497 933
Pacific Grove | 15,083 4,083 2,581 1,502 750
Sand City 310 40 34 6 29
Seaside 33,360 4,219 2,306 1,913 1,891
TOTAL 108,988 22,174 12,824 | 9,350 5,406
South Monterey County

Jurisdiction Population 65 and older 65-74 | 75 and older | Population with a disability
Bradley 99 23 18 5 7
Chualar 1,413 86 72 14 50
Gonzales 8,348 572 342 230 182
Greenfield 17,565 1,114 823 291 100
King Clty 13,787 941 698 243 642
Lockwood 351 50 25 25 3
Pine Canyon | 2,934 375 172 203 416
San Ardo 628 29 17 12 7

San Lucas 415 23 14 9 13
Soledad 17,070 1,362 806 556 588
TOTAL 62,610 4,575 2,987 1,588 2,008
Big Sur Coast

Jurisdiction Population 65 and older 65-74 75 and older Population with a disability
Big Sur 1,786 332 225 107 77
TOTAL 1,726 332 225 107 77

Page 12 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx




Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Seniors

Approximately 14% of Monterey County’s population is age 65 and older (8% are between ages
65-74 and 6% are age 75 and older).

About two-thirds (80%) of Monterey County’s senior population live in incorporated cities and
one-third (20%) live in unincorporated towns and rural areas.

Most seniors live in the City of Salinas (30% of the County’s total senior population). Very few
seniors live in the unincorporated towns of Bradley (0%), Moss Landing (0%), Lockwood (0.1%),
Pajaro (0.3%), San Ardo (0%), San Lucas {0%) and the City of Sand City (0%).

The highest concentrations of seniors (as a percentage of total population) live in the City of
Carmel-by-the-Sea (50%) and the unincorporated town of Spreckels (48%). The lowest
concentrations of seniors live in the unincorporated town of Pajaro (4%).

People with Disabilities
Approximately 9% of Monterey County’s population reports a disability.

Over two-thirds (82%) of Monterey County’s disabled population live in incorporated cities and
nearly one-third (18%) live in unincorporated towns and rural areas.

Most people with disabilities live in the cities of Salinas (41% of the County’s total disabled
population) and Seaside (11%). Very few people with disabilities live in the unincorporated
towns of San Ardo, Bradley, San Lucas, and Chualar (0.1%).

The highest concentrations of disabled populations (as a percentage of total population) live in
the incorporated cities of Carmel-by-the-Sea (17%) and Marina (14%). The lowest
concentrations of disabled populations live in the unincorporated towns of Lockwood (3%) and
Spreckels (0%).

More than three-quarters (76%) of all persons with disabilities are also seniors age 65 and older
(Figure 1-2). Most seniors in the County experience ambulatory (16%) and hearing (11%)
difficulties (Figure 1-3).

Figure 1-2 Monterey County’s Disabled Population by Age Group?

Total Population People with % of County’s
Disabilities Population
Under 5 years 30,731 185 0.6%
5to 17 years 82,472 3,529 4.3%
18 to 24 years 97,778 3,924 4.0%
35 to 64 years 148,394 11,231 7.6%
65 to 74 years 34,213 6,688 19.5%
+75 years 23,837 11,525 48.3%

12016-2020 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, Table 51810

Page 13 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

To determine disability, the American Community Survey asks questions regarding hearing or
visual impairments, cognitive difficulties, difficulty walking or climbing stairs, difficulty dressing
or bathing, and difficulty doing errands alone.

The most common disabilities in the county are ambulatory (4%), cognitive (3%), and
independent living (3%) (Figure 1-3).

Figure 1-3 Monterey County’s Population by Disability?

i % of County’s

Disability Type Total % of County’s Total Seniors ° over 65 Y
yp Population Population with Disability A

Population
Hearing 11,140 2.7% 7,805 13.4%
Vision 6,738 1.6% 2,607 4.5%
Cognitive 13,734 3.6% 4,995 8.6%
Ambulatory 18,055 1.7% 11,048 19.0%
Self-care 8,650 2.2% 4,890 8.4%
Independent living 13,188 4.3% 7,395 12.7%

Population Projections

The Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG), the region’s metropolitan
planning organization (MPO), projects the Monterey County population to increase nearly 12%
between 2020 and 2040. The senior population —age 65 and older — is expected to increase by
more than 60%.

Figure 1-4 shows the growth of Monterey County’s older adult population from AMBAG's 2018
Regional Growth Forecast.

Figure 1-4 Monterey County Senior Population Projections?

- Monterey County Population

Year Overall 65+ 65-69 70-84 85+

2020 448,211 66,421 21,582 35,915 8,924
2030 476,588 90,385 22,821 54,889 12,675
2035 489,451 100,044 22,877 59,084 18,083
2040 501,751 108,960 24,406 60,841 23,713

22016-2020 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, Table S1810
3 AMBAG, 2018 Regional Growth Forecast — Technical Documentation
Page 14 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

e 18% of Monterey County’s population qualifies for senior and disabled transportation
services.

e Over three-quarters of Monterey County’s senior and disabled populations live in
incorporated cities.

e About a quarter of Monterey County’s senior and disabled populations live in
unincorporated towns and rural areas.

e The top three disabilities for seniors are ambulatory, independent living, and hearing
difficulties.

e The top three disabilities countywide are ambulatory, cognitive, and independent living.

e The City of Salinas has the greatest concentration of seniors and people with disabilities
countywide (about one-third of seniors and two-fifths of people with disabilities in
Monterey County live in Salinas).

e The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea has the greatest concentration of seniors per capita
(1 out of 2 Carmel residents are seniors).

Chapter 2
EXISTING SERVICES

Background

The Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC]) is designated by the State of California
to serve as the regional transportation planning agency (RTPA) for the County. TAMC is
responsible for administering some federal and most state funds for public transit service
operated by Monterey-Salinas Transit.

There are several different transportation options that seniors and people with disabilities can
access in Monterey County. These include fixed-route transit, ADA-mandated paratransit,
shuttle services, non-profit transportation services, private transportation such as taxis, Lyft,
Uber, and volunteer driver programs. Other transportation options include walking, biking (for
limited portions of the population), and driving or being driven by family, friends, or neighbors.
Additional transportation-related resources can include subsidized fare/voucher programs,
travel training, and information and referral services.

Description of Services

Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST) operates several mobility services that provide a variety of
travel options that allow travelers to participate fully in their communities. These services are
funded partially through customer fares but mostly through grants and allocations from federal,
state, and local sources, including public agencies and private foundations. Some of the services
described below have changed or are no longer in service because of the COVID-19 pandemic.
This will require further review with MST to identify the current operations for the senior and

Page 15 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

disabled population. MST is also working on implementing the Comprehensive Operational
Analysis which will include some modifications of these services.

FIXED-ROUTE TRANSIT

MST provides fixed-route bus service to the greater Monterey and Salinas areas - as far as Paso
Robles and Big Sur and as far north as Santa Cruz and San Jose. Service originates from two
primary service hubs - the Monterey Transit Plaza (in downtown Monterey) and the Salinas
Transit Center (in downtown Salinas). From these hubs, 59 routes branch out like spokes on a
wheel.

Fixed-route fares range from $1.50 for local services, $2.50 for primary services, $3.50 for
regional services, and $12.00 for commuter buses. A 50% discount is available to people age 18
or younger or age 65 or older; individuals with disabilities; Medicare Card holders; or veterans.
Free bus passes are available to active duty military personnel and Department of Defense
civilians who qualify under the federal government’s transit benefit program.

ADA PARATRANSIT (RIDES)

MST RIDES serves most of the same geographic area as the fixed-route system in the portion of
the county between Prunedale and Watsonville in the north and San Lucas in the south (within
3% of a mile from any of MST's regular bus routes). Outside that area, MST had received a waiver
from the Federal Transit Administration that allows the agency not to operate paratransit
service in very remote areas in the south part of the county along Highway 1 down to Big Sur.

ADA fares range from $1.50 for one-way trips up to 2.7 miles, $2.50 for trips up to 17 miles, and
$3.50 for trips over 17 miles.

RIDES Special Transportation (RIDES ST)

Limited service is available in parts of unincorporated North and South Monterey County that
area outside MST’s ADA service area for the purpose of traveling into the ADA service area.
Once inside the ADA service area, certified RIDES customers may take full advantage of the
RIDES program.

The MST RIDES Special Transportation (ST) service is a non-ADA, locally funded transportation
program. The service area for North Monterey County includes unincorporated areas within
Prunedale, Castroville, and Aromas. The MST RIDES ST service area for South Monterey County
extends one mile on either side of Highway 101 from Salinas to Bradley, including the
unincorporated community of San Ardo.

Passengers must be ADA Paratransit certified and may use the service for any reason; however,
the point of departure must be within specified ST service areas. This service accounts for about
2% of all paratransit rides. There is a $2.00 surcharge (on top of the RIDES fare) for trips
originating or ending in the ST zone(s).

Page 16 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Special Medical Trips

MST Special Medical Trips provides transportation for out-of-county medical appointments four
days per month: twice to the San Jose area and twice to the San Francisco area.

This service is available to the general public on a first come/first served basis and must be
scheduled at least three days in advance by 5:00 p.m. A round-trip fare is $20 payable in cash or
with MST Special Medical Trips tickets, available at Salinas Transit Center or on board the bus. A
personal care attendant (PCA) rides for free when registered with MST. If space is available,
other companions may ride for an additional $20 each. For residents of King City, Greenfield,
Soledad, and Gonzales, only designated stops will be served when requested and prior to the
9:00 a.m. departure from Salinas Transit Center. No discounts are available for seniors, people
with disabilities, or veterans.

TRIPS

Eligible seniors, veterans, or persons with disabilities living outside MST’s service area can
request a reimbursement of 40 cents per mile, up to 250 miles per month, to compensate
family members and friends who volunteer their time and privately-owned vehicles to
transport them. There are no restrictions on trip purpose for this program.

SENIOR SHUTTLES

MST has four Senior Shuttles - community routes that are meant to deliver service for seniors
with no transfers required, but with slightly more circuitous routes than other fixed-route lines.
These MST lines (91, 92, 94, and 95) are operated daily on fixed routes and schedules and are
open to the general public. They serve important shopping, medical, and residential locations.

ON-CALL SERVICES (Marina, South County)

The MST On-Call, or dial-a-ride, services operate year-round and provide public dial-a-ride in
designated service corridors in commercial and residential areas within the Cities of Marina,
Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, and King City. On-Call replaced the fixed-route in places where
there was very low ridership in Marina, and MST’s South County On-Call system primarily
replaced municipally operated general public dial-a-ride services in King City, Greenfield, and
Soledad while providing new service to the City of Gonzales.

The Marina On-Call service operates seven days a week between 7 a.m. and 6 p.m. Monday
through Friday and between 8 a.m. and 6 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays; all other On-Call
services operate weekdays only beginning as early as 6:30 a.m. and ending as late as 6:30 p.m.
Standard fare is $1.50; a 50% discount is available for people under age 18 or over age 65,
Medicare Card holders, and people with disabilities.

TAXI VOUCHER PROGRAMS

MST offers a taxi voucher program to assist seniors, persons with disabilities, and veterans in
accessing important locations within their communities. The Taxi Voucher Program has three

Page 17 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

categories of taxi vouchers: seniors, persons with disabilities and veterans, each with its own
eligibility requirements.

To receive senior vouchers, an individual must be 65 or older, have a valid photo ID, have proof
of residency, and be a resident in one of the following communities: Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del
Rey Oaks, Marina, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Salinas, or Seaside. The vouchers can be

obtained at one of the distribution locations in the city in which the senior resides.

To receive vouchers for persons with disabilities, an individual must be certified in the MST
RIDES ADA paratransit program. The vouchers are issued on a quarterly basis and will be mailed
when requested.

Veterans Voucher: To receive the veteran vouchers, veterans may visit one of two distribution
locations. A qualified veteran is an individual who served active duty in one of the branches of
the US Military. The vouchers are provided on a monthly basis.

Each voucher covers up to $17 worth of taxi fare, but voucher users must pay a $3 copay and
any amount above $17 total fare. There is a limited number of vouchers available.

Taxi trips using vouchers must be taken on one of three approved taxi providers:

» Central Coast Cab
s Green Cab
¢ Yellow Cab

So that this program is available to all qualifying seniors regardless of their disability, MST
purchased nine wheelchair-accessible vehicles and has leased them to local taxi providers.
Disabled persons have a higher priority for usage of these wheelchair-accessible taxis; however,
they usually require advanced reservation.

MST has developed a training program for taxi operators who wish to provide service to MST
customers through the MST RIDES ADA Paratransit and the Taxi Voucher Program. The
classroom training focuses on providing good customer service to seniors, and persons with
disabilities, how to accept taxi vouchers, how to properly serve MST RIDES ADA Paratransit
customers, and how to comply with ADA requirements for taxi operators, as well as compliance
with Federal Transit Administration requirements which extend to MST contractors and
subcontractors.

TRAVEL TRAINING

Travel training is a program to increase an individual’s confidence in using the fixed-route
transit system independently. MST’s program is available to any individual, including seniors,
people with disabilities, and veterans. Training is available on how to use the fixed-route
system, how to access specific destinations, and how to use transit with mobility devices. The
service is offered free of charge.

Page 18 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Navigators

MST offers a unique program with its Navigators. Navigators are interns and volunteers that
provide general assistance to individuals in using the transit system. Navigators help process
taxi vouchers, attend community events, assists frail passengers, provide education, and visit
senior centers. The program not only assists people in need but also helps individuals develop
empathy for these populations. Individuals in need of assistance by a Navigator can contact
MST's Mobility Specialists by phone or email.

NON-PROFIT TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

ITN Monterey County

As part of a national network, Independent Transportation Network (ITN) Monterey County is a
local non-profit affiliated with the ITN America that offers mobility services to dues-paying
members. Anyone who is age 60 or over or is an adult with visual impairments is eligible to
become a member, Transportation is provided primarily by volunteers in private vehicles and
the cost to riders is sometime less than an equivalent non-subsidized taxi ride. The service is
designed to operate like getting a ride from a friend or family member. Drivers will carry
packages and provide a steady hand if assistance is needed. Volunteers earn credit toward
future trips for friends and family members, as an incentive to provide service in one’s free
time. Rides are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, for any purpose, and any destination
within the service area can be served.

Dues are $50 per year for an individual or $75 for a family; scholarships are available to assist
low-income riders and shared rides are offered at a 20% discount. Rides are paid for through
rider and driver accounts; no cash is exchanged. Each ride costs $4 per trip plus $1.50 per mile;
the average trip cost is $11.

Ten local communities are currently served by ITN: Carmel, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Pebble
Beach, Seaside, Salinas, Toro Park, Carmel Valley, Marina, and Castroville. Through the Cycle 2
period, ITN has been working with local partners to implement their Rural Pilot Expansion
Program. This program would bring service to rural North Monterey County, and to South
Monterey County, as far as King City. Service is expected to begin in these regions in the
summer of 2022.

Partnership for Children

Partnership for Children (PFC) provides transportation services to children and youth living with
serious illness who must travel to the closest children’s hospitals in the Bay Area for medical
care. A two-tiered transport system offers gas cards and direct-services to qualified families. If a
family does not have access to transportation or for various reasons can not use a family
vehicle, PFC arranges door-to-door direct transports utilizing an agency owned vehicle. For
families who utilize the gas card offer, PFC reloads the gas card with the appropriate funds to
cover the cost of the trip for each verified medical appointment.

Page 19 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

American Cancer Society Road to Recovery

The America Cancer Society’s Road to Recovery program is a volunteer-driver based mobility
program for cancer patients going to and from treatment. Patients must be ambulatory, able to
walk unassisted to and from the vehicle, or be accompanied by an assistant. All ages are
welcome, but people under age 18 must be accompanied by a parent or caregiver. Requests for
transportation must be made at least four days in advance. Transportation is available Monday
through Friday between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. The local office is based in Oakland.

Veterans Affairs Office Transportation

The Monterey County Military and Veterans Affairs Office provides transportation for veterans
to Palo Alto and San Jose VA clinics. Several other transportation programs are also available to
veterans in Monterey County, coordinated through the Veterans Affairs Office:

e Assistance in purchasing and retrofitting wheelchair-accessible vehicles
e Assistance with vehicle repairs and the purchase of used vehicles
¢ Mobile medical clinics

SERVICES PROVIDED BY PRIVATE PROVIDERS

Transportation Network Company (i.e., Uber/Lyft)
Companies that match passengers with drivers via websites and mobile apps on-demand.
Taxi Services

Taxi service refers to for-hire automobile travel supplied by private companies with a driver,
used by a single passenger or small group of passengers.

EXISTING SERVICES KEY FINDINGS

e Avariety of transportation services for seniors and persons with disabilities are
already available in Monterey County.

e Recent expansion of funds dedicated to transportation services for seniors and
people with disabilities through Monterey-Salinas Transit Measure Q (2014) for 15
years and the Transportation Agency’s Measure X (2016) for 30 years.

e Transit service in rural communities often lack effectiveness and efficiency due to
spread-out land uses that do not support high quality transit service.

Page 20 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Chapter 3
OUTCOMES FROM PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND OUTREACH

EFFORTS

Stakeholder Interview Summary

TBD

Outreach Meeting Summary

TBD

Survey Results

TBD

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND OUTREACH KEY FINDINGS

T8D

Page 21 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment

Chapter 4
TRANSPORTATION NEEDS AND GAPS

Areawide Mobility Needs
TBD

City-based and Unincorporated Areas Needs

CITY-BASED NEEDS

TBD

UNINCORPORATED AREAS
T8D

Programmatic/Administrative Needs

TBD

DRAFT June 2022

Page 22 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working

Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Chapter 5

STRATEGIES

Strategies are based on a review of prior studies and existing conditions, stakeholder
interviews, and outcomes from public participation. Short-term strategies are lower in cost and
could be implemented in 1-2 years. Funding could come from current Measure X Senior &
Disabled Program or other funding identified by Monterey-Salinas Transit. Long-term strategies
would take a longer time to implement and would likely take greater coordination and funding.
In addition to Measure X, funding for these strategies could come from federal funding or a
future sales tax measure like Measure Q.

Short-Term Strategies

e Better coordination of
o Whatisit?
What need does it solve for Monterey County?
Who would be appropriate implementation partners?
How much does it cost?
Are there any local examples?
What are the next steps?

O O O O O

Long-Term Strategies

e Better coordination of
o Whatisit?
What need does it solve for Monterey County?
Who would be appropriate implementation partners?
How much does it cost?
Are there any local examples?
What are the next steps?

O 0 O O O

Page 23 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Monterey County Transportation Needs Assessment DRAFT June 2022

Chapter 6
NEXT STEPS

Cycle 3 - Measure X Senior & Disabled Program
TBD

Page 24 of 24

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/TAMC NEW/Projects and Programs/Senior & Disabled Program/Working
Folders/Cycle 3 Working Folder/Measure X Senior & Disabled - Cycle 3 - Draft Needs Assessment.docx



Jjoid-uoN ¢(2) 105

AINNOD AJIIINOW
40 d3IN3O AAAIVIWI
ATIVASIA ANV ANI19 3HL




‘Buip|ing ALUNUWIWOD D PUD PaID 82JN0Sal/AIDIQI © ‘18jUdD
ABOJOUYDS] DAISISSY UD ‘DIUID UOISIA MO AJ9SNIW " SuUoLDW 8yl
JO BuIlbU 8y} Yiim pale|duiod som uolpAoual Jolow D ‘900z Ag

‘900ds
92110 |DUOIIPPD PUD |SPOWSI D PBAISDSI IBJUSD YL ‘7661 Ul

'SODIAISS SAILD}IIgOYS
SPN|DUI O UMOIB POY UOISIA PUD UOISSILI S,J81U8D) 8Ul ‘8861 Ag

"I08A/ | $ 1O} 8SDS| S|JOMBUSI IDSA-0Z O ULIM
000°0€$ 10} SMOJ[24 PRO 40 dnoib b woly Bulping sy} pasoydind
UIADY ‘All|IDD} 8A0IS DIIDD |y} O} PSAOW IDIUSD 8yl ‘€6 U]

‘PUIg 8y} 10} UoipzZIURBIo
IDUOILDDNPS PUD [DUOIIDBID8I D SO ‘| 241 ‘Z1 IsnBny pajniodiodu)

AdOISIH 43119 V




"1I08A Jad Sjusl|D Q0p LNOQD O} SODIAISS 1DalIp saplacid JsluseD) ay]

"SSO| UOISIA JO $8SN0D BUIpDS|
18y}0 aIo S{oDIDIDD puUb ‘Ayipdouljay diegpi( ‘PUIODNDI|D
"SSaUpPUI] 4O 85N Bulps] 8yl s uoliplausbag IOINDOW

“(1epjo 10 §9 sjuLsID
1O %G /) sebus|pyD yijoay Jaylo YiM U0 SIOIUSS 810 SJuUdID

INO JO |SOW 810j8I18y} ‘palpblal 86D a1 SUOIIPUOD 8As AUDW
‘pasodull AloNsIA JO puliq AjipBa)] alo sjuUsiiD N0 JO ISOW

*SSO| UOISIA JO S|OAS)
10 Uim SpUSpIsal AlUNOD) ASISIUOW (IO Of S|QD|IDAD 810 S8DIAISS

S3ADIAY3S




‘sojduwpxa alp sisiubow dopisep

puD a|gpUOd PUD ‘splaIysuns ‘sedooss|a} ‘sisijiuboul p|IsypupH

‘5||{S AIOsUSS pup ‘Bulpybl] ‘SUOCILDIYIPOW |DLUSUIUOIIAUS ‘SODIASP

ULM UOISIA 8|gDSN SZILUIXOW O} UWIDS| sjusllD ‘spio [poljdo-uou
PUD |PDILAO JO 85N By} Ul BUIUIDI} PUD UOIDN|DAS ‘JUSUISSOSSY

SODIAISS UOISIA MOT  »

‘25N uollbllodsuply 2gnd pup Buissold jaalls ‘apinb
palybis ‘senbiuyos) oAllo810Id JOOPUI ‘S||IMS SUDD BUO| UIDY|
SIUSID “juswsAoW juspusadepul pup 8jos ‘|Njasodind 8pPIAOId -

SOOIAISS ALIQOW PUD UOIDIUBLQD -

"SIDAIBSIND PUD SIPNPIAIPUI JO SjuBuoduw oD
[p21B0ojoyoASd pup ‘Bulojiuow jusio ‘Bulyopod sAlpoddns
'ADDO0APD ‘s|puBial ADusbBD DUl ‘SPaaU SjUSID JO DUl -

juswebpubW aspD/sadiAleg poddng -

S3DIAY43S A




‘Buitybi| pup sadlAsp Bupy|p} ‘sisljiubbw pjaypuny
‘S.ALDD sepnioul “paJinduwl A[oNSIA pup pullg 8yl 1o} ABojouyosy
LUS1ND JO 8SN 8y} Ul UOIIDNISUI PUD ‘fJUSWUSSSSSY ‘uoljplisuouwaq -

lajusD ABOJoUYDS] SAISISSY

"UOISIA BUlulDWSl JIBy) JO 8sN [s8g a)bWl UDD Jusljod sy} os 0}
spIo [P21do sequosald PUD JUSID 8y} JO SPaaU [DNSIA SSIDNIOAS
PUD sSWpXa aAlsuayalduiod wiouad sisuewoldo pazipioads -

DIUIID UOISIA MOT A|9SNOW " auUoliow -

ybnD} |0 31D Bullbs pup 810D [puosiad ‘UolpzIULBIO ‘BullLs|D
‘AlSJDS UsYD|y ‘BupRDnl [DIDUDUN ‘©@2UDUSIUIDW PIOYSSNOH
"9SS YIIM PUD A[BJDS $YSD} 8}l P81 8ABIYDD SIPNPIAIPUl djoH -

SOOIAISS UoYDYIgOYSY

S3DIAY3S ADI




"'SBUIUSDIDS $B12QDIP PUD SUIDXS
aAs Aioulwiaid 1o} D1UlD 3lIgoWw dNOoJS) SUOIT UILJOW UDS  »

QUID SIIQOW UOSUIQOY [V

220z 1snbny — ZZ0Z UDIoW -
UOIIDAOCUSY 821JQO SA0ID DD -

"'SOOIAIBS ALIQOW PUD UOIDIUBLQD ‘S8SSD|D
BUO0D ‘SasSP|D 9||ILIg ‘suolplsuowap ‘sdnoub Lioddng

220z Alonuor
Buiby uo a2upl|y ybnoiy} 1o8loid gnH -

9210 SoulS -

S1IVOO ¢20c




010 UOISIAMO|PUDPUIIIBUOISIA :|iou
GOGE-6179-1€8 -uoyd

0G6£6 VO '©A0IO DYIODd ‘SNUBAY [9IND7 G

AlUNOD A8JBlUOW JO Jajluad) palipdwl AjJoNSIA PUD pullg 8yl

¢SNOILSIND







zeoz/lz/L

uofiljejuasalgi@aIIulio) AI0SIAPY Ali[IQOIN

S41N0d O JaNSVIIN
AddOMLIN SNG 41139




abpLYHION-Yduey swel|ipy 56 aul .

9]33NYS URIIFA -21UID A0 A-VA -SBUI|eS Tg aulT .
10} PalaA0DSIP Usa( 9ABY SalduUaIdll)s O] mu._.._mEm>O._QE_ oWw0g

ue|d ay3 azijeuoiiesado 01 aAip dasp e buiel mou aue ye3s bujuueld

LAOMIBN sng 191399,
zzoz 31e7 404 pauue|d uonejuawa|duwi

¢zoc _umuao_um Sem ueg|d J40M1eN |_Ul4d VOD

ANNOdDADOVE



%
£m
Hw
:
Wm_
d

O
E
d
N
S
\v/
3
A
S
u
e
J
9
|
3
A

Y

L
S
)
olu
9
S




ANgH 134 s4ebuassed

S 00K DR A/ HEFSIGS i

ST T TS T _

A% A L) ONY

SEFLINDWH N S WY L8 FF

Conam b Buey seu

ERE VT 1~ RO T - R

b

Vo F00IEA SO HINTY i1 Sk

1
i | o
I I |

"
EY

il

=
]

71
I

TN e T g

o TRgAhp s

I PUENGT

a.mI WoASHIINOW SN0 TG T
* [ - sunn

=
~

o
o

«
@

<
el

Srln e

WSS

JIOMISN
sng 191399 Y3 ul syuawanosduw
SWIOS 335 ||IM pUB JUdIDI4aUl
0S| 2.8 Saul| D NS\ JBYI0

SaUl| 9SaY3 Uo
Annizanpouad moj AsaA Aj|eario3siH

(pa131wo saul| aadNpoud 3sow)
e1ep zZ0T AR\

ALIAILDNAOAd



-

BN 125

S uOSJs

q eusy

INFIDIA4dNI 3V SI1LNOY




depeansusdg @ xoqdey @

‘ % 000€

B e e

7
y /
r) [
{ I §
-l !
~
| Gad \
\\ |
\
o mmc__mm
\\\ jestiy
/
[
// !
\ /
2 i
.l\\ [ #
]
'd \ A\
. ]
’\&// wlw. .
’ I
] ._
/ ]
—h \.lllllﬁ
) ! ¢
Y L.~
l..ll..lvl-"l"" —-
- D
ey Bues

919|dwod 01 sinoy
Ajldeau sayjey eyl dooj
Aem-3suo e s| 6 aulT .

JNILONOT AYIA
V VL SILINOY



depaensuado @ xoqdepy &

Y

3 000€

&

/

uoRdUN[ §|AYR3IASY 5

2pus)

e NMERISE

6% .

GY.
el.
TY.

:s91n04 Aduanbauy-iaybiy
Aqg paaedidnp si S6 aui .

AAILVYOI1dNd
MON

14V S41N0d
—— S S S



Gz JuI 10 0T BUIT ,25.YD, P|NOM TG BUIT

St: SY:

19 aul]

AAILVYOITdNA MON 3dV 531NAddHD5



e R

S31NO0d MIN —S1TVS50d0dd




|

J1LINHS S,NVA3IL3AT9 NI

depasnsuado @ xoqdey
AT A @xoq Tw . apisyPaly
1,
\.\mwwmuoom
Sy,
s P
% asIn
/f./ 13
3
&
juawdojanap §
YSdIHD MaN %
i
uediyubis ‘uosies) 3se3
‘diyssapu 0} 22135 SAPINOI 4
MO| AISA uisyied peou
uosiiier) }se3 919|dwodul
Py uosieD-Bl Ue SMOJ|04 £ sat
23N01 P|O 2
>
<

10} Buluiny
1uaidilfauf

<]
i

&7 suin

AQ panIas
s| jeudsoH SaUBIDIBUI
s9leuiwig

: /l/ \ .».mﬂ___ - .r.m.\ll I.OUE,m_.W,..

seuljes

Ajqelajsues)
104 X LIN S9nIaS

aniasald |RameN
saung eulIe

1St



depieansguad xoqde L e .
Wieangusdo @ xoqde @ LS 24 rogant (o)

W
sfypaudg apisyeasy

umolHRIC

umoiBunidg

UONUNG Sjayladg

—_ — semsms OOUE]Y

fesiy =
AS'L 006 009 Q0E OSL 0s 0
.__...IJ vpuciog GEEEN.——
4 AW / SNY¥3LIA
— *dnoib yooiq Ag
E - 'SURIDIBA BB oYM Bjiw d4enbs jad sjdoay
EL Y
snjejg uelajan
ey eueg



JTLLNHS S,NVA3LIA T NI

apisyeRID | LI .1y 41 X0gen) W(g)

depsansuadQ @ xoqden @ idg

L’
UMONHPIO

umolbunds

uonoung siaxpasds ...mff .

dwen olo]

o =mms.0DUR|g

L 006 009 00r 002  0S 0
[ 1[5

zIN / 37403d

61L0C B34
sodoo) ‘dnosB yao|q Aq ap|o Jo
sieah g9 ale oym 31w aienbs sad sjdoay

iojuag

19suc

SHOUN esiod



A1L1INHS S,NVAdLIA T IANIT

e ST P P sm(o)

depzeanguadg @ xoqdepy @ sdg

w
UMOYIH'PIO

cBQmw_tQm
§

ISL 006 009 00E OSL 0§ 0
L
zIiN / 37d03d

epuciog

610 4834

4SERED) ‘pely snsusd Aq ‘Ayjigesip
e aney oym 31w asenbs sad ajdoay

sanijiqesiq Yam Buiar ajdoay

jasue

SHouy esion




39AI4HLYON
- HONVY
SINVITTIM 56 INIT

ep9.igeadg  vogoopy

< 3 000E o,
s
>
'

SETRIIETRINTET]]
ZELELS

(sanoy z Ajueau)
awli | uny buoT

sanuill 5g *xoidde 03
uapoys 03 [esodoid



SRS uRd] | xogqary

< % 000E

W
gy

(so1nulw ST
~ AIdAS 3w0d sasnq
“Bunpauuod assym)

A9dldH1LdON
-HONVYY uloques/iauier)
SINVITTIM 56 3NIT pue
. lle ebpuyuioN
1 So1Nnod

Adusnbauy-ybiy
Y2IM 193W p|nom
IUIWLIR} 5,91N0Y




31LNOW 13d VIA SV

deNRE L oTT o wO0ARy, R

< el (A2uanbaly ybiy)
T4 U Jo pud |
1B S2jeuiIs]

awn
|91 JIND

SISV1 0L 3IDAIIHLION 36 3N

pepiAieN

SaAlag

I'T MAN

M

(Aauanbauy
yb1y)
6% aur jo pus
18 Sa1BUILLIB)




m.rzo_\,_ 734 <_> m/jm_ mi Ol mwo_w_IEoz mm mz: M3N

1§ 006 009 00t 051 0% o
NSNS

W 7 SNVEILIA

dnasb ya0iq da

‘SURIDIEA 3R OUM Djru duends sad djdoay

5NjelS URIBIIA




m_t/_o_>_ 13d VIA SV1SI SYT Ol 39dI4HLION 56 INIT >>mz

A Iﬁ

Wi 006 009 OGOy 0T 0% [
L
W 7314034
S10Z 1834

dnos 320q Ag 18P0 S0
SIBDA G 2i€ OYM N0 drenbs sad ajdoay

io)uag




3LNOW 13d <_> m<._m_ m<|_ O._. m__um__w__._._.w_OZ mm ANIT >>m_Z

AN e ) roaaa L x_r_._abup Jil= o

< ¥0001 b - Tk . - e -
- R " . . il
r L - ) i | £ L3 - LS L ]

’ MM : . « 4 ; [} e

e

5L 006 009 O0CE 05+ 05 U
GRS

W 7 374034

o\b‘; ¥

SLOZ 11854

“1IR4) SNSUED AQ Anjigesip
€ 2ABY OyMm i arenbs Jad 91doeg

sapjjiqesig yim Gujan sjdoag




spua2am wdoo:¥7-weoo:oT . spudjeom wds?:9- wesSy:6 .

sAepyaam wdoo:9-weoo:g . sAepy@aom wdSs%:S- wesh:L .
:92IA195 JO ueds . 1921195 JO ueds .

(s91nuIW £ 00T Ajjuauind)
S31NUIW Z°SQ Wi} unJ palewilsy . 's91NUIW g6 :awi} unJ palewinsy -
S6 aur . T9 aulT -

ALVININNS



L[gS-%79t-1Eg

uoneaouu| 3 buiuue|d jo 1033311Q

19ABWLIBAQ 3IPYdIN

SNOILSANO






%0
%01
%07
Y60k
%0y
%0S
%03
%0l
%08
%06

%00T

%0

%S
0T
%51
%07
%57
%60€
%GE
%07
%Sy
%04

8608
S619
%E'LY
%G°CS
%ET'0
834

€LY'L
€109
%105
%9'6¥
%00°0
Nvf

6908
989'9
%S 8¢
%318
%5900
oid

6858
719'9
%T'TS
%68k
%10°0
AON

0206
9rT'L
%6t
%S08
%e00
1250

€716
S0L'9
%1 6V
$68'05
%P0
1435

FEL'S
6599
%4 0§
%E'6Y
%E0'0
ony

0552
S90°'L
%9'vS

%800
mnr

STF0T  ¥60°0T T8T°0T
8CT'L 6569 v90°L 8T'L
%C P %S 9% %T 9t
%8°'SS %S'€S %8€S
%0070 %S00 %E0°0
NAr AV qdv B
-
%I1'T %507 %SBT
8rET Se07 L0OBT
957’8 v68°L 9861
e55% 9PEs £EPS 1258
NOr AYW dd¥ 47N
- - = o= =
;- S

%E'8T
8EVT
0€Y9
LiLy
934

esssnisdaanynee?
-

siaduassed S3aly

%E"9T
6STT
£L6S
ST
NYT

-cclv.o.-o

%6V
12481
96€'9
2815
PEIY

<C0C Ad

%0°8T
6r'T
1649
1905
AON

sdu] saagiy

pJeoqyseg AN-LSIN

%661
79L°T
£80°¢
8E€54G
120

%0
608'1
9ETL
445
1d43S

%Y 81
6¥ST
84989
0z1s
5Ny

%681
98E'T
626
08S5
nr

(T A==t
TZM

% puews( 77 A4 we==
%E'SYy % uoadinsyng zz Ad
% 1182 (11 TT A4 ==

0007
000y
0009
0008
000°0T
000°ZT

sio8uadssed S3QiH

oney duf IXe] seesss

SAU] IXE)] e e

000T
000¢
000¢e
000y
0005
0009
000L
0008
Q006

T AJ s @ e
1T AJ =t

sdisl s3a)y



%00°06 %00°06 %00°06 %00°06 %00°06 %00°06 %00°06 %00°06 %00'06 %00°06 %00°06 %0006  PIEpUBIS PDBIUOY e v o v s

%P0T6  %6E06  %9L06 %0076  %Iv06 %8006  %EEE3  %LS06  %SSBY  %V6'68  %bST6 22 A4 e—
%5668 %CTT6  WIST6  BLEVE  %STV6  %8LVE  %SIV6  WILVE  %SL'VE  %IBEE  %IIEE  %ILEG T2 A
N YV g3 v 100 1d3S onv 0o

%0078
%0078 o
3
%0098 &
3
%0088 ®
__— __— —_— g__— ’ o
“rrese STEYE DA “eaas dvoeofillsve e hees Er— L TR e I %00'06 m
%0076 =
O
%0076 %
%0096

(d10) @2uewopiad awij up s3aly

(8T 8T 8T (81T 81 8T (8T (8T (8T 87 8T L2T  PlePUEIS JORIUOT e e ees
000 8LT 6LT 8L'T S9'1 $S'T 18T 59°T vLT 69T 591 857 PRASNIPY 77 Ad mn
000 8LT 6LT 8LT 91 SS'T 15T 59T 70T 69T 991 851 72 Ad
€917 197 091 Sr'T 8r'T or'T vt ST ST 18T 781 851 pasnlpy TTAd
€91 19T 09T Sr'T 8v'T o't 't 05T 75T ST 5T 851 1T A4
NOF AYIN dv x<_>_ 834 NVT >3a ON 130 1435 nv i 000
0z’0
a0
090
080 o
00T 2
4 0T m
_ ov'T
09T
PP LSNPS I TP AT EP PP SO PN EER SISO NS BEEPNIPNEE NN Ow.-ﬁ
002

(HYA/d) A1noH anuanay 3pIYaA 1ad sia8uassed s3AlY

7207 A4
pieoqyseq AIN-LSN



ST08 £LSE8 6148 L¥69 £994 £V9L L£8L 0818 PBAIBORY SIIBD LA == = =
%0066 %0066 %0066 %0066 %0066 %0066 %0066 %0066 %0066 (5)00€> pPIepUEIS 19BIUD s c v oo
%0056 %00'S6  %00'S6 %0096 %0056  %00'S6  %00'S6 %0066  %00'S6 {5) D8T> PIEPURIS JIRIJUOD s s oo a s
%IEGE  %EL66  %L966  %STL'66  UEL66  %LBB6  %EBBLE  %VIR6 {5) 00E> % 7T Ao emmmmen
%C906  %CE'06  %BOT6  %CQ'T6  %S606 %IC06 %LT'T6  %/L606 %0908  %S9'78  %S0'98 {S) 08T> % 27 A emmmmmn
NI AVIN Hdv dvYW 934 NV J3d ACN 120 143S ony nf
0 %00°09
0001
000t
000t
0007 %0008 X
0
X
a
000S °
X
-3
0009 =
Q007 L R i LR R R N R N X R R
0008 e %00'00T
0006
00007
Sauwill PJoH sjied S3aiy
¢C0C Ad

pieoqyseq AW-LSI



zeung
Zz-unr

o't 600°T

UY'E 6102
zT-Aen zz-idy
7T-ARIN Zz-idy

RN

8107
TET'T
8N
ce-dejp

R LA -.®
- e o "
e®® “eee e b senn
.
"

018
610t

7z-g34
7z-994

{9£0T) plepuelS SIQIY s e e v oo

(872
S6b'T
c-uef
c-uep

L08 658
L1072 LrT'T
TE930  TZ-AON
Te-22Q  TZ-AON

<06
8CT'T
T2-10
110

S3d1Y 3AE0d

43
5781
Tg-dag
1z-dag

£L8
T16'C
1Z-8ny
Tz-8ny

GSL {%01) plepuels S3AY e s e o oo

8<Z'T 530 :3A8Dd
praig)
prailul)

00g

000'T

005"t

000°C

00sT

000

005'E

000"

0057

(OA9Dd) sautejdwo) pijep udamiag pauie) siaduassed

S3dly 1S

7207 Ad
pJeoqyseq A-LSIN



8L0'C
0 182'0T
Tz-unp zz-heln
zunt gz-hep

S9v'y
9te'TeT
7z-1dy

12T
90901
BN

(%0T) PIBPUBIS DO / Y e e sces

9887 ETLT 9E17 €457 S78°T
79881 12544 089°0T 7€L'ST 08¢
2994 cZ-uef 1Z-2°Q TZ-AON TZ-P0
7994 ce-uer 1Z-3°Q TZ-AON 12-P0

T

20/ peXid :OAGDd ——

1867 0T€7
LZEL 960'ET
1z-dss  1z-8ny
cdas  Tz-8ny

7zdy zz-rein

(%0T) PIBPUEIS DO /e eovee

€152
7879 20/ P3XIF :OAE)d m—
TTns
ralll
a
000°0T

6oo'oz

ooo'og

00o‘ov

00008

(JNA90d) swiejdwo) pijep usamiag paiie) siaduassed
lled-uQ / aanoy paxiy AN

2207 Ad
pleoqyseq AW-LSIN



%00°0 %IET %S0T %L0' %LS'T %96'T %STE %82'T %181 %672
%000 %STOT  %STTT  %ILOT  %ELOT  %SLpT  %OVET  %0STT  %VLOT  %Sv'Ol
zz-unt zzhew  gz-dy TgeRN Zze9ed zgdef 108 TzAON TER0 Teedsg
s|aaue) a1e7 '3 SMoys oN S3aly
%9%°0 %EY'0 %0£°0 %870 %SL0 %E80 %LL0 %SL°0 %L8°0
%EB'0 %IE0 %bv°0 %620 %120 %ST'0 %610 %80°0 %910 %020
8€E vE vz 8T 5 €5 43 €5 29
9y 6T 74 91 at L 0T v 6 0T
zz-unt  zz-Aew  gzedy gzoleN Zz-Ged Zzouer Tz93@  TZMON IZPO Teedes
%0°0 . '
%70 B - J
U | _
%G . 20 @ o
%30 L.
%30 .J\ g YRR evaRe e *Pec,
%07 _
¢C-TC Ad

sdu] passiN S3aly

220T A4
pieoqyseq AIN-LSIA

%45°C
%ET'TT
TZ-8ny

%620
%ET0

TZ-8ny

%EG'T
%5ECT
Te-nr

%LS°0
%570

Tz

=

9% SAMOUS ON =
9 S|@aue) aey

%000
%00°¢C
%00y
%009
%008
%0007
%001
%00°71T
%0091
%00°8T

% PassiiN
% PSS

09

ZTAdeseese
TCAdeocs=s
TT AJ mmm



7l

%1

Y4

%E

Eg

s

S6°0
%000
%00°0
%00°0
ceung

ce-ung

%000
%00°36
%000
cg-ung

(44

S6°0
%07°56
%SL'L6
%9€'96
zz-AeN

zz-Aen

560
%EC96
%6L°86
%t L6
Zz-ldy

7Z-4dy

1l

S6°0
%CS'S6
%186
%V’ L6
Ze-1BiN

(BN

1l

S6°0
%6186
%56'86
%C6'96
¢Z-9°4

Z-q94

560
%8E 86
%9166
%¥5 86
cz-uer

ce-uer

S6°0
%EC 66
%99 66
%0t 86
1Z-23q

1Z-33Q

S6°0
%6V L6
%0T 66
%ET'86
TZ-AON

T¢-AON

S6°0
%9L'66
%1v'66
%886
1Z-W0

TR0

—. | -' | _'.o

S6'0
%E6'86
%8E 66
%Py 86
1z-dag

1Z-dag

5196 aauelsig Aq sawiy sdia] pseog up siqaiy

%59T  WOLT  %TrT  %8ST
%100 %100 %100 %200
%0056 %0056 %00°S6  %00'S6
%BY'G6  %BEV6  AOEE6  %SL'68
tehew  Tzady zzaeN 7zeg9ed
unr  zz-hew  zzady  zzdew  zzeged

ssussne LR R N svoee

1L

%BIEE
%00
%00°56
%6976
C-ue(

zz-uer

%C0'E
%c0°0
%00°96
%1€ V6
T¢-32Q

TZ-22qQ

%C0'E
%10°0
%00°56
%Y V6
T¢-MON

TZ-AON

%18°C
%100
%0056
%8L 16
TR0

TTRO

1

SE'D S6°0
%6566  %BY'66
wh9E66  %UELBH
%9S'L6  %EEE6
1z-8ny  TZ-In(
Tz-8ny  TZenr
. %00°06
%00°76
%0076
s e L
%00°96
_ _ %00°86
%00°00T
%S88'E %LEY %00°0
%T00 %100 %200
%0056 %0056 %00°56
%0V’ 76 %6816 %9 L6
12-03¢ Tg-3ny TZInr
1g-das 17-8ny i¥allals

sjusunuioddy pajnpayds Joy} sjjodoag awil uo sialy

pJeoqyseq AIN-1SIN

€20C Ad

LI L

XBW SSINUIL ZTT 7 SO /T< Emmm—
XBW SSINUIW 67 19 S £T> /' 7< mmnn

SSINUIW 6E B SIIW /7>

syodoig Al » e=m
$4j0d04Q 318 e

|BOSD s e s 0ae

S{RALLIY BWIL UQ m—

%000

%Q0°0¢

%000V

%00°09

%00°08

%00°00T






